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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small
and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-
sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Zhejiang RuiYuan
Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair
and reasonable.
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Corporate Information
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Keng (Chairman)

Ms. Wu Shanhong

Mr. Chen Weigiang

Ms. Zou Jing (appointed 25 March 2021)

Mr. Ding Cheng "7 (resigned 25 March 2021)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Zhou Weibo
Ms. Sheng Ting

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Guo Fanggiang (appointed on 4 November 2020)
Mr. Zhang Shenggen

Mr. Chen Yuankang

Mr. Shi Huanmiao (resigned on 4 November 2020)

MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Weibo
Ms. Sheng Ting

MEMBERS OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Sheng Ting (Chairman)
Mr. He Keng

Mr. Zhou Weibo

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

MEMBERS OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Zhou Weibo (Chairman)
Mr. He Keng

Ms. Sheng Ting
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Note:

1. Mr. Ding Cheng has resigned as an executive Director with effect from 25 March 2021

in order to devote more time on his other personal career development.
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COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. He Keng

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zou Jing
Mr. Cheng Ching Kit

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. He Keng
Mr. Cheng Ching Kit

AUDITORS

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Factory, No. 3, Laiyan Road West Economic

Development Zone (South Side), Yuyao
Zhejiang, China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40" Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.ruiyuanhk.com

HONG KONG H SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Abacus Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank of China
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”), I am pleased to present the 2020 annual results of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The overall economic environment in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC” or “China”) in 2020 was very challenging for private enterprises
due to the following factors:

(i) the overall economic growth rate continued to slow down
(i)  competition and production costs continued to increase

We strived to survive in such a harsh environment by simplifying our
operation structure and controlling costs.

In 2020, our major business included sales of controller systems for
electronic equipment and electronic component and subassembly for
electronic appliances.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB35,858,000 (2019: RMB66,558,000), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB30,700,000 over the previous year. The
decrease in revenue of the Group was mainly due to the impact of the
novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) outbreak in China in early 2020, the
obsolescence of 3G electronic modules operated by a subsidiary of the
group and the challenging environment which leads to the sharp decline
of group revenue.

For details of performance analysis and financial review, please refer to
page 6 to page 10 under the section Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report.

PROSPECT

While the market for 2021 remains uncertain. Some trends seem to be
certain:

(i) the economic growth will further slow down; and

(i) automatization and replacement of labor by robotics will continue
to speed up.

The above trends present challenges and opportunities to the Group. |
have more than 13 years experience on industrial automation and have
great confidence in the future market of intelligent control system for
industrial uses.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

While 2021 remains challenging for us, we will explore business
opportunities for intelligent control system for industrial uses.

DEDICATION

On behalf of all members of the board of Directors, | would like to take
this opportunity to express our sincerest gratitude to our shareholders
and colleagues for their unwavering dedications in 2020 and to our
clients and business partners for their loyalties and support rendered to
the Group.

He Keng
Chairman
Ningbo, The PRC, 25 March 2021
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE R AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s activities comprise sales of controller systems for electronic
equipment and electronic component and subassembly for electronic
appliances. The Group’s activities are primarily operated in the PRC and
the Group’s revenue is mainly attributable to customers in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB35,858,000 (2019: RMB66,558,000), representing a
decrease of approximately RMB30,700,000 over the previous year. The
mainly due to the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak in China in early
2020, the obsolescence of 3G electronic modules operated by a
subsidiary of the group and the challenging environment, which leads to
the sharp decline of group revenue. During the period from January to
December 2020, the revenue of one of the subsidiaries accounted for
about 1% of the total revenue of the Group. In consideration of the
prospect of the subsidiary’s business, the Group has terminated the
labor contracts of some employees of the subsidiary and severance
compensation was paid in accordance with the labor contract law.

Due to the general poor market and increasing competition, the Group
strived to survive in the harsh environment by maintaining a simple
organizational structure and controlling costs to a minimum level.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

An analysis by reportable segments is provided in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Gross profit margin was 1.3% (2019: 3.2%), revenue decreased by
approximately RMB30,700,000. The decrease in the Group’s gross profit
margin was due to the increase of product cost and decrease in selling
price of the products in 2020.

The Group recorded other income of approximately RMB22,000 (2019:
RMB200,000) in 2020.

Administrative expenses recorded an decrease by approximately
RMB859,000 over the previous year (2020: RMB4,511,000; 2019:
RMB5,370,000). The decrease in administrative expenses were mainly
due to the decrease expense of labor cost. In 2020, the Group laid off
some employees and paid about RMB 1,253,000 in severance
compensation for the layoffs. Without taking into account the layoffs
costs, the administrative expenses in the current year would have been
even lower than the administrative expenses in the same period last year.
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT

Finance costs increased by RMB947,000 over the previous year which is
primarily due to the imputed interest expense on loan from a major
shareholder (2020: RMB4,270,000; 2019: RMB3,323,000).

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB8,496,000
(2019: RMB6,844,000), representing an increase of loss of approximately
RMB1,652,000 over previous year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Current assets and liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of approximately
RMB15,472,000 (2019: RMB23,403,000), representing a decrease of
approximately RMB7,931,000 compared with last year. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in paid in advances by
approximately RMB119,000 and trade receivables by appropriately
RMB6,453,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current liabilities of
approximately RMB29,649,000 (2019: RMB72,280,000), which
represented a decrease of approximately RMB42,631,000. The decrease
was due to the loan from a major shareholder is classified as non-current
liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net liabilities of approximately
RMB39,967,000 (2019: RMB48,684,000). The Group’s operations and
investments were financed principally by its internal resources, loan from
a major shareholder and shareholders’ equity.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB10,147,000 (2019: RMB10,979,000), with no bank
borrowings (2019: Nil).
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE R AT

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no other borrowings (2019: Nil).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2020 , The Group has no gearing ratio. (2019: Nil),
which was expressed as a percentage of other borrowings over the total
assets.

There were no important events affecting the Group which have occurred
after 31 December 2020.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

As the general economic growth in China slowed down in recent years,
competition in the controllers systems market becomes keener and
keener. In this connection, we will continue to implement stringent cost
control measures in 2021. Going forward, the Group will explore business
opportunities on intelligence control system for heavy industrial uses such
as application for industrial robotics.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITION

The Group did not have any significant investment and acquisition during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities of the Group during the year are set out in Note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 10 employees (2019: 18
employees). Remuneration is determined by reference to market terms
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees. Bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees in recognition and reward of their contribution. Other benefits
include contributions to retirement scheme.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R wm M oA

An analysis of employees of the Group by their duties for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 is set out below:

RBE_Z-—N\F —_ZE2-hER_Z_ZF

TA=+T—BIL=EFESF - RBEIN
AEBEERNOT

Headcount for the year
ended 31 December

HE+-A=T-HLEFENAR

2018 2019 2020
—E-N\F ZT-NF ZB-BF
Sales and marketing HEMTIGHEE 8 7 3
Production (including quality control) AE(BIEEEES) 1 1 1
Finance and administration B 7S R ATIER 8 8 5
Procurement i 2 2 1
19 18 10

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS EEMS

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rule (“Corporate Governance Code”), the Company has
established the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration
policies. Directors’ remuneration is subject to Shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
of such Directors elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration. No Director, or any of their respective associates,
was involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no other borrowings or charges
on the Group’s assets (2019: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material
acquisition.
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Mangment Discussion and Analysis
BIEE R AT

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2020.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

Please refer to page 40 to page 41 for information about risk
management and internal control systems.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group was in compliance
with all the laws and regulations applicable to the business operations of
the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As from 31 December 2020 to the date of this annual report, no
significant events have occurred.

DIVIDENDS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year under review (2019: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 BEEMeSNEEABNEEF

DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of 7 Directors including 4 executive
Directors, and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Keng, aged 45, has been the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director since 13 December 2016. Mr. He resigned as a
chairman of Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co., Ltd* (“RuiYuan
Machine Tool”) on 30 April 2019 and joined Zhejiang Zhu Ji RuiYuan
Machine Tool Group Co., Ltd* I T B EEKEEER 2 a)
(“RuiYuan Machine Tool Group”), which, RuiYuan Machine Tool, is a
Member of the RuiYuan Group, as chairman on 1 May 2019. He has
extensive experience in corporate management. He worked in the
Bank of China Shaoxing Branch from July 1997 to January 2005,
during which he served as the account manager of the corporate
account department, the head of the sub-operating office and the
president of Zhuji Xincheng Sub-branch respectively. Mr. He
graduated from Zhejiang University with a major in accounting and
financial management.

Ms. Wu Shanhong, aged 35, has been an executive Director since 13
December 2016. Ms. Wu resigned as the chief financial controller of
RuiYuan Machine Tool on 30 April 2019 and joined RuiYuan Machine
Tool Group as financial controller on 1 May 2019. She has years of
work experience in finance. Ms. Wu Shanhong graduated from
Southwest Jiaotong University with a major in accounting.

Mr. Chen Weigiang, aged 39, has been an executive Director since 13
December 2016. Mr. Chen resigned from RuiYuan Machine Tool on
30 April 2019 and joined RuiYuan Machine Tool Group as the
manager of market department on 1 May 2019. Mr. Chen Weigiang
graduated from Southwest University of Science and Technology with
a major in economic information management and computer
application.

Ms. Zou Jing, aged 34, has been an executive Director since 25
March 2021. Ms. Zou is the deputy general manage and a joint
secretary of the Company. She is responsible for the daily operation
and management and the company secretarial affairs of the Company.
Ms. Zou Jing graduated from Yangtze University (Business
Administration).
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 EEMeSREEABNEEF

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie, aged 49, has been an independent non-
executive Director since 20 June 2012. Mr. Kwok currently has been
providing corporate advising services as professional accountant in Hong
Kong. He has also been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Siberian Mining Group Company Limited, and Winshine
Science Company Limited companies listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), since
February 2014 and March 2019, respectively. He was previously
appointed as financial controller, company secretary and authorised
representative of Forebase International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwok is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. He holds a Master of Professional
Accounting Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master
of Corporate Governance Degree from the Open University of Hong Kong
and a Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University).

Mr. Zhou Weibo, aged 45, a senior engineer, a first-class certified
architect. He has been an independent non-executive Directors since 30
April 2019. Mr. Zhou has been working in the construction industry since
1998. He is currently a project manager and technical director of HAMO
Construction Group Co., Ltd.* ( ## # 72 5% & B B R 2 7 ), with rich
experience in project management and operation. Mr. Zhou graduated
from Zhejiang University with a major in electrical technology

Ms. Sheng Ting, aged 31, has been an independent non-executive
Directors since 30 April 2019. She is currently a manager in the business
department of Zhejiang Wuchan Zhongda Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
CHITHWEFXKEEEEFR2AA). She successively served as an
auditor in the operations management department of Zhejiang Wuchan
Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.* G I¥EMEHE B R A F]) and a business
manager at Hangzhou Branch of Zhejiang Chouzhou Commercial Bank.
Ms. Sheng graduated from Shanghai University of Electric Power with a
major in Computer Science and Technology.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 BEEMeSNEEABNEEF

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Guo Fanggiang, aged 50, has been a supervisor of the Company (the
“Supervisor”) since 4 November 2020, a senior engineer, is the technical
director of the Company. He joined Zhejiang RuiYuan Machine Tool Co.,
Ltd. in 2005, successively served as various positions including an
electrical engineer, a production director and deputy general manager. In
2019, he joined Zhejiang Zhuji RuiYuan Machine Tool Group Co., Ltd.
and has been its deputy general manager. He has extensive experience
in production management and operation. Mr. Guo Fanggiang graduated
from Harbin Institute of Ship Engineering (now known as Harbin
Engineering University) majoring in underwater acoustic and electronic
engineering in July 1991.

Mr. Zhang Shenggen, aged 73, has been the Supervisor since 13
December 2016. Mr. Zhang resigned from RuiYuan Machine Tool on 30
April 2019 and joined RuiYuan Machine Tool Group as the manager of
sales department on 1 May 2019 and is currently the head of the
corporate management department of RuiYuan Machine Tool Group. Mr.
Zhang Shenggen graduated from University of Hangzhou* with a major in
administrative management.

Mr. Chen Yuankang, aged 46, has been the Supervisor since 13
December 2016. Mr. Chen resigned from RuiYuan Machine Tool on 30
April 2019 and joined RuiYuan Machine Tool Group as the manager of
sales department on 1 May 2019 and is currently the head of the
production department of RuiYuan Machine Tool Group. Mr. Chen
Yuankang is experienced in production management.

* For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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55 EEMAANEEAENREERSS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT EREEE

Ms. Zou Jing. For biography of Ms. Zou, please refer to “Directors” 4+ - BEAFLLIHBEZLHE IX[E%E] -
above.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEATRWE

Ms. Zou Jing. For biography of Ms. Zou, please refer to “Directors”  #gF4+t - BT LTHNBEFEEXHE LX[EE] -
above.

Mr. Cheng Ching Kit, is one of the joint company secretaries of the — EFIZEE%E 4 - ARATHE A TME 2 — o B4
Company. Mr. Cheng is a manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group 4 &S BIMERGER (F8)GRAT 2L
(Hong Kong) Limited and has over 8 years of experience in corporate A MEMERKSBEHEEHN\FLR - RAEFS
secretarial field. He is an associate member of both The Hong Kong #HHWMER UL EREF A TLAEAES (BIHE
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute  HEZFWMERITHAEAEG) 2 &+ o Lo - K5
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and HRMNE L AEEEL () 24 -
Administrators) in the United Kingdom. In addition, he holds a Bachelor of

Commerce degree in finance from the University of Queensland, Australia.
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Re ort of the Directors
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are the sales of intelligent
controller systems for electronic equipment and electronic component
and subassembly for electronic appliances. Details of the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion on
the Group’s future business development and the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 10 in this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 54.

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE AND UNCERTAINTIES
Credit Risk

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to the failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties arose from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other debtor at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
Please refer to Note 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements for
details of credit risk.
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Re ort of the Directors
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Interest Rate Risk

The Group was not exposed to any fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable rate bank balances. However, the Group considered that the
effect of the cash flow interest rate is minimal and no sensitivity analysis
to interest rate risk is presented. Please refer to Note 34(b) to the
consolidated financial statements for details of interest rate risk.

Liquidity Risk

The Group was exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December 2020 as its
financial assets due within one year were less than its financial liabilities
due with in one year. The Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB14,177,000 as at 31 December 2020. The liquidity of
the Group depends upon the positive cash flows expected to be
generated from the Group’s future operations and the Group’s ability to
successfully obtain new working capital in order to meet the Group’s
future working capital and financial requirements. Please refer to Note
34(b) to the consolidated financial statements for details of liquidity risk.

Currency risk

The Group operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in RMB. All of the financial assets at amortised
cost are denominated in RMB. As a result, there is no exposure to foreign
currency risk.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise. Please refer to Note 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements
for details of currency risk.
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Re ort of the Directors
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 57. The
Company has no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company and no restriction against such rights under
the laws of the PRC, which will oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 143 and 144.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or agreed to be
granted by the Company to any of its Directors, Supervisors or
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. He Keng (Chairman)

Ms. Wu Shanhong

Mr. Chen Weigiang

Ms. Zou Jing (appointed on 25 March 2021)

Mr. Ding Cheng °* (resigned on 25 March 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie
Mr. Zhou Weibo
Ms. Sheng Ting

Note:

1. Mr. Ding Cheng has resigned as an executive Director with effect from 25 March 2021
in order to devote more time on his other personal career development.

In accordance with Articles 88 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors and Supervisors appointed by the Board since
last shareholders’ annual general meeting shall be elected at the coming
shareholders’ general meeting for a term of three years. A Director or
supervisor may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon the expiration
of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management are set out on page 11 to page 14.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INFORMATION

There is no change in the Directors’ and Supervisors’ information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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Re ort of the Directors
% wEE

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years from his/her date of
appointment as a Director or, as the case may be, as a Supervisor and
thereafter subject to termination by either party giving not less than one
month’s written notice to the other party.

No Directors or Supervisors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into any service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts disclosed
above, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a Supervisor of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for as disclosed under the section headed “Permitted Indemnity
Provision”, no transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to
which the Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020 or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020. In addition, no
contract of significance between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was made.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no Directors or their
respective associates has engaged in or has any interest in any business
which were in competition or were likely to compete, directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the controlling shareholders of the Company or their subsidiary
has or had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance, whether for the provision of services or otherwise, to the
business of the group to which the company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND
SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

So far as known to the Directors, at 31 December 2020, the interests
and short position of each Director, Chief Executive and Supervisor in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO”)), as required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or as otherwise notified to be Company
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and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing BiSE#1TE AR HHHEELED MG R D
of securities by directors and supervisor of listed issuers as referred to in~ XFFEEZR AR AT ¢
Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rule, were as follows:
Long positions in shares RO HFE
Approximate
percentage of Approximate
shareholding percentage of
Name of Director/ interested in shareholding
Chief Executive/ same class of interested in the
Supervisor Number of Shares interested (Note 1)  Nature of interest securities registered capital
ERERERS fheEfER
EETEMH BREEREEN BARERRN
IN-V4 & 33 FERENROHE (ME1) BEHE RABDL RGBS
Mr. He Keng 370,000,000 Domestic Shares (Note 2) Interest of controlled 100.00% 74.00%
% E 370,000,000 Bx A& B (B3t 2) corporation
R RER
1,000 H Shares (Note 3) Beneficial owner 0.0008% 0.0002%
1,000 B H & (FzE3) BRERA
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of the Directors

(1) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each ( the “Domestic Shares”), in the
registered capital of the Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in
Renminbi. “H Share(s)” represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of
RMBO0.10 each in the registered capital of the Company, which are listed on the GEM
and subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars.

2) On 11 July 2016, Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Robot Company Limited (“RuiYuan
Robot”) entered into a share transfer agreement with Wan Li Group Company Limited
(BERREBERMHABRAE) (“Wanli”), Mr. Qi Yong Qiang (“Mr. Qi”) and other parties,
pursuant to which, among other things, RuiYuan Robot agreed to acquire (i)
306,900,000 Domestic Shares held by Wanli and 15,775,000 Domestic Shares held
by Mr. Qi (collectively the “First Batch Sale Shares”) and (i) 47,325,000 Domestic
Shares held by Mr. Qi (the “Second Batch Sale Shares”). After completion of the
transfer of the First Batch Sale Shares and the Second Batch Sale Shares, Mr. He
Keng and parties acting in concert with it owned an aggregate of 370,000,000
Domestic Shares, representing approximately 74% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2020.

Q) As a result of the mandatory cash offer following the sale and purchase of the First
Batch Sale Shares and the Second Batch Sale Shares (the “Mandatory Cash Offer”),
which closed at 4 pm on 14 September 2016, Mr. He Keng acquired valid
acceptances in respect of 1,000 H Shares, Accordingly, Mr. He Keng was interested
in 1,000 H Shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors,
Chief Executives and Supervisors (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) have any interest in, or had they been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO).

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement enabling the Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors of the Company to hold any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation.

Furthermore, at no time during the year was there any arrangement
whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or its associated corporation.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2020, the persons
or companies (other than the Director or chief executive of the Company)
have interests and/or long positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which are required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO, and who were directly or indirectly deemed to be interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company are
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listed as follows:

Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
shareholding shareholding
interested interested in
Name of Substantial Total number of in same class of the registered
Shareholder Shares interested Nature of interest securities capital
fhEERES EEfmER
BRBEEREN BRSEREN
TERRHEEB EERENRAEY EatE ROBAE R
JmiE#8 A RuiYuan Robot 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Beneficial owner 100% 74.00%
370,000,000 R W E R ERfAA
(Notes 2, 3 and 4)
(Bf#2-3%4)
M EEERBEERA 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of controlled corporation 100% 74.00%
(FRMLE D) 370,000,000 A& R R iRER
(Hangzhou Qindie Electronic (Notes 2 and 5)
Equipment Company Limited) (Hiz2%5)
(*Hangzhou Qindie”)
FECRUEREERAR(ZEELR]) 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of controlled corporation 100% 74.00%
(Zhuji Jinfu Electrical Equipment 370,000,000 R W& & REEEER
Company Limited®) (“Zhuii Jinfu”) (Notes 2 and 5)
(Hzt2 k5)
RENERETRBEBRAR([AEDER]) 47,325,000 Domestic Shares Nominee 12.79% 9.47%
(Shaoxing Qinyuan Electronic Technology 47,325,000 R A& Bk REA
Company Limited) (“Shaoxing Qinyuan”) (Notes 2 and 6)
(Hzt2 k6)

* For identification purpose only
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Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
shareholding shareholding
interested interested in
Name of Substantial Total number of in same class of the registered
Shareholder Shares interested Nature of interest securities capital
hEERES EEmER
BASHERN BAREREN
TERFHRE/EB BEEEENROEY ERME RO BAL RESL
{1 # % 4 Mr. He Keng 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of controlled corporation 100% 74.00%
370,000,000 & A & i R RER
(Notes 2, 5 and 6)
(Hizt2 - 5%6)
1,000 H Shares Beneficial owner 0.0008% 0.0002%
1,000 HR EEEAA
(Note 7)
(H7t7)
a2 %4 Mr. Tang Jingfeng 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of controlled corporation 100% 74.00%
370,000,000 R R E R Rt ER
(Notes 2, 5 and 6)
(Bz#2 - 5%6)
HEIE 58 4 Mr. Zhao Zhongxin 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of controlled corporation 100% 74.00%
370,000,000k W E K FEEEER
(Notes 2 and 5)
(Biz#2%5)
{15 1R % & Mr. He Yanggen 370,000,000 Domestic Shares Interest of controlled corporation 100% 74.00%
370,000,000 A& R REEFEER
(Notes 2 and 5)
(o ks)
Martin Currie China Hedge Fund Limited 14,245,000 H Shares Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%
14,245,000 B HAR AR 3 RERE
Martin Currie Investment 14,245,000 H Shares Investment manager 10.96% 2.85%
Management Limited 14,245,000 % H i & 17 hEEE
Notes: Bt
1) Domestic Shares of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each, in the registered capital of the (1) AAREMERDEREEARK0.10THAERTIIA
Company, which are subscribed for or credited as fully-paid in Renminbi. “H Share(s)” ARBREIARIEAR - HIR] RARAZMER

represent overseas listed foreign share(s) of a nominal value of RMB0.10 each in the

TEEEEARB0I0THEI ETINER - RGEM

registered capital of the Company, which are listed on the GEM and subscribed for
and traded in Hong Kong dollars.
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On 11 July 2016, RuiYuan Robot entered into a share transfer agreement with Wanli,
Mr. Qi and other parties, pursuant to which, among other things, RuiYuan Robot
agreed to acquire (i) the First Batch Sale Shares from Wanli and Mr. Qi and (ji) the
Second Batch Sale Shares from Mr. Qi. After completion of the transfer of the First
Batch Sale Shares and the Second Batch Sale Shares, RuiYuan Robot and parties
acting in concert with it owned an aggregate of 370,000,000 Domestic Shares,
representing 74% of the entire issued share of the Company as at 31 December 2020.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29 December 2017,
RuiYuan Robot has pledged its 322,675,000 domestic shares of the Company
(representing 64.535% of the total issued share capital of the Company) to an
independent third party for serving Zhejiang RuiYuan’s own purpose and fuffilling its
responsibilities.

RuiYuan Robot is a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and is owned as to 55% by Hangzhou Qindie and as to 45% by Zhuiji Jinfu.

Hangzhou Qindie is a company established in the PRC and is owned as to 51% by Mr.
He and as to 49% by Mr. Tang Jingfeng. Zhuiji Jinfu is a company established in the
PRC and is owned as to 50% by Mr. Zhao Zhongxin and as to 50% by Mr. He
Yanggen.

Shaoxing Qinyuan,to whom the second Batch Sale Shares were transferred, is the
nominee for RuiYuan Robot and a company that is owned as to 60% by Mr. He and
40% by Mr. Tang Jinfeng.

After the Mandatory Cash Offer closed, Mr. He Keng acquired valid acceptances in
respect of 1,000 H Shares. Accordingly, Mr. He Keng was interested in 1,000 H
Shares.

Save as discussed above, the Directors are not aware of any person
(other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Chief Executives’ and Supervisors’ Interests and
Short Positions” above) holding any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required to be recorded in the register pursuant to section
336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Director’s
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong) when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on page 29 to
page 46 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 52%
— five largest customers combined 100%
Purchases
— the largest supplier 72%
— five largest suppliers combined 100%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has an interest in the major suppliers and major customers noted
above.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

According to our business nature and pursuant to the relevant laws of
the PRC/Hong Kong, there are no specific environmental standards and/
or requirements for conducting the Group’s business.

For details about the environmental, social and governance matters, please
refer to the 2020 environmental, social and governance report of the
Company, which will be published within three months after the publication
of this annual report to the websites of both the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group ensures that all the employees are reasonably remunerated
and maintains good relationship with its employees. For details, please
refer to the sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Employees and Remuneration Policies” and “Report of the Directors —
Corporate Social Responsibilities” of this annual report, respectively. The
Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy workplace for its
employees and encourage them to have a work-life balance.

On 7 November 2016, a former employee of the Company, filed a claim
with the Labour Tribunal of Hong Kong against the Company and its
former subsidiary, Hong Kong Wan Li Enterprise Company Limited
(together the “Respondent”) for a compensation of approximately
HK$2,600,000. As of the reporting date, the dispute between the
Claimant and the Group are still in progress, the result of the case has
not yet come up and the Directors are of the opinion that the Company
has strong grounds to defend the claim. An amount of RMB86,000 was
made in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, and no further provisions was made thereafter.

Details of the dispute are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good relationship with its customers. The sales
personnel make regular visits and/or phone calls to the customers. If
there is any complaint from customers, it will be reported to the
management and immediate remedial action will be taken and feedback
from customers will be followed till settlement of the complaint.
Thereafter, the cause of such complaint will be studied, analysed and
evaluated and recommendations will be in place for improvement.
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Report of the Directors

The Group also maintains good relationship with its suppliers. During the
year, no complaint was received from the suppliers and there were no
disputed debts or unsettled debts and all the debts were settled on or
before due dates or a latest date as mutually agreed.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out in
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report set out
in Appendix 15 in the Corporate Governance Report of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2020 are
disclosed on page 29 to page 46.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group, are set out in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the transactions described therein fall under the definition of
connected transaction which are not fully exempted from shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirement under chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations was made by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no significant events after the end of reporting period.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, the management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business that directly or indirectly competes with the
business of the Group or has any other conflicts of interest.
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REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matter, including the review of the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

AUDITORS

KTC Partners CPA Limited has resigned as the auditors of the Group
with effect from 10 January 2019. Crowe (HK) CPA Limited has been
appointed as the auditors of the Group with effect from 10 January 2019
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of KTC Partners CPA
Limited. Save as disclosed above, there have been no changes of
auditors in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, who shall retire

and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

He Keng
Chairman

Ningbo, The PRC, 25 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
establishing good corporate governance practices and procedures. The
maintenance of high standard of business ethics and corporate
governance practices has always been one of the Group’s goals. The
Company believes that good corporate governance provides a framework
that is essential for effective management, successful business growth
and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

Continuous efforts are made to review and enhance the Group’s internal
controls and procedures in light of changes in regulations and
developments in best practices. To us, maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices is not just complying with the provisions
but also the intent of the regulations to enhance corporate performance
and accountability.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with the CG Code except the following deviations (Code Provisions
A2.1):

Mr. He Keng is the Chairman of the Board. The Company has no such
title as the chief executive officer and the daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive directors as
well as the senior management. The Board is of the view that although
there is no chief executive officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced
individuals and meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting the
operations of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has appointed 3 independent non-executive Directors.
The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company still considers all
the existing independent non-executive Directors to be independent. All
the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a three-year
term.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted the required standard of dealing set out in Rule
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors, supervisors and employees
(the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry with all Directors and
supervisors, the Directors and supervisors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the GEM
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The
procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of
inside information are as follows:

° the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the GEM Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

° the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and its website;

° the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information; and

° the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:
Executive Directors Mr. He Keng (Chairman)
Ms. Wu Shanhong
Mr. Chen Weigiang
Ms. Zou Jing
(appointed 25 March 2021)
Mr. Ding Cheng "ete !
(resigned 25 March 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie

Directors Mr. Zhou Weibo
Ms. Sheng Ting
Note:
1. Mr. Ding Cheng has resigned as an executive Director with effect from 25 March 2021

in order to devote more time on his other personal career development.

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprises seven members,
including four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. Each of the members possesses sufficient experience and
qualification which enable them to discharge their duties properly.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including age, education background, skills and
experience.

The chairman is responsible for the formulation and review of the Group’s
overall development strategies. The daily operation is delegated to the
executive Directors and senior management. None of the independent
non-executive Directors is interested in the business of the Group and
their independence has to be confirmed upon appointment or
reappointment. Currently, there is no financial, business, family or other
relevant material relationship among the existing Directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company, all the Directors
shall be elected at the general meeting of the shareholders and the term
of office shall be three years, renewable upon reappointment or re-
election.
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ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

Board meetings are conducted on a periodic basis and with reference to
the operation needs. During the financial year ended 31 December 2020,
a total of 4 Board meetings and 1 annual general meeting (“AGM”) were
held by Company, and the attendance of each Director is set out as
follows:

Number of meetings attended in

ERHETE

EEgEHEREBRTRTEE REE-ZT
“EET_A=+—HUIEMBEEAN  ARFES
HBETAREFEEE I ARRBF RS (KR
RBFRE])  SUEBEZHFEBERHEIIMOT :

Attendance/Number of
meetings held

the year ended 31 December 2020 HE/BITERERY
REBZE-E-ZF+-A=+-H Board
LEEREEERAE meetings AGM
Name of Director EEHR EExges BRREFEAE
Mr. He Keng (Chairman) B %HE (£E) 4/4 11
Ms. Wu Shanhong RAT 22+ 4/4 1/1
Mr. Chen Weigiang BRiZ2R L& 4/4 1/1
Ms. Zou Jing (appointed 25 March 2021) P LT (RNZEZ—F=-A=ZTHARZM) N/AZR i N/AZN i FR
Mr. Ding Cheng (resigned 25 March 2021) THREE(R-E-—F=A-+HABT) 4/4 11
Mr. Zhou Weibo &R E 4/4 1/1
Ms. Sheng Ting Bigzt 4/4 11
Mr. Eddie Kwok Kim Hung P 4/4 1/1

The chairman attended AGM to answer questions and collect views of
shareholders. All Directors, company secretary and the auditors had
attended the AGM to answer questions at the meeting.

Except for the AGM, the Company did not hold any other general
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND OF REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in Note 14 to the
audited consolidated financial statements.

The Company has one senior management member. Pursuant to
paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, remuneration of senior management
by band of remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:

Remuneration bands 4Rl

ETREHFS %Liﬁ/ﬁx@“ﬂxifﬁ BREE
HER 28E%F  ARWERZBAEICHER
RBFARGINE LOIERE -

BERRBFAEIHN  RARRBE_ZT_ZTF
+ A=t —HUEFEREETEMEMBRRAK

o

mE}

BREMER B D 2 SREEBKEFHTMH

EEHFIFBRNEERE AU BEMRM T4 -

AARBE—EERERE - RECEERTIE
B15ER MEZE—_ZT-_ZTF+_-_A=+—Hit
FESREIEERBRGTINARE S 2 EHE 7
R

No. of individual

A

RMB1 to RMB1,000,000 AR#A17TE AR 1,000,0007T 1
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Group and be
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group’s overall strategies, authorising the development
plan and budget; monitoring financial and operating performance;
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system; supervising and
managing management’s performance of the Group; and setting the
Group’s values and standards. The Board delegates the day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group to management.
The delegated functions are reviewed by the Board periodically to ensure
that they accommodate the needs of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the
Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. At least
10 days’ notice of regular Board meetings is given to all Directors and
they can include matters for discussion in the agenda as they think fit.
The agenda accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
3 days or a shorter period agreed by the directors before the date of a
regular Board meeting in order to allow sufficient time for the Directors to
review the documents.

Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
perusal and comments prior to confirmation of the minutes. The Board
also ensures that it is supplied in a timely manner with all necessary
information in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge
its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled
to have full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.

EEEET

EEgREREREHAEEWEBEENEE
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EAEBEZEEBERGE - EERLIEERER
BEAKBEZAREE TBRREEIR -EFg
EHRE PTIRH 2 aE - IR EFEAEE

T EEAWEE

HRYEKXNIEXERZES AHMEEEA
BERITREERRE - WHE LB AR R RE
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IEFEEEERIBRARR ZEREERA
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. He Keng (“Mr. He”) is the chairman of the Company. Mr. He is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and policy making of the
Group.

The Company has no such title as the chief executive officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company is
monitored by the executive Directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no chief executive officer,
the balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
Board, which comprises experienced individuals and meet from time to
time to discuss issues affecting operation of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be elected at
general meetings and shall hold office for a term of three years and shall
be eligible for re-election upon expiry of their term. Each of the executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A
record of the training received by the respective Directors are kept and
updated by the company secretary of the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended
31 December 2020 is summarized below:

BE_T-_THF+_A=+—HLFE B8E=F
P 255 2 @RI et an T

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/conference(s)
relevant to the business or
Directors’ duties
LEEHERSESHER
ERE 8 gEER

Mr. He Keng (Chairman) ML (£/E) v
Ms. Wu Shanhong KRBT 2= v
Mr. Chen Weigiang BRIZREE v
Ms. Zou Jing (appointed 25 March 2021) PR —F=-AZTHARZM) N/A N A
Mr. Ding Cheng (resigned 25 March 2021) THRAE(R-E-—F=A=-+HHARHT) v
Mr Zhou Weibo BRI EE 4
Ms. Sheng Ting BiETt v
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie BRIELEE /
All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous 2% $7TT%§ |[IHEEXER BB - AH
professional development and are committed to participating any suitable 2 EERIE&E 2| UBEREFHERE 2 M35
training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. &L

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEY

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
3 independent non-executive Directors, who have reviewed the annual
results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020. Mr. Kwok
Kim Hung, Eddie, is the chairman of the Audit Committee who has
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Audit Committee has primary responsibility for monitoring the quality
of internal control and ensuring that the financial performance of the
Company is properly measured and reported on, receiving and reviewing
reports from management and the auditors relating to the annual,
quarterly and interim results, and monitoring the accounting and internal
control system in use throughout the Group. The Audit Committee held 4
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020.

AARIEZZES((F%REZES ) AN B
WITESHEN  FEEEHARABE-Z =%
F+ZA=T—RULEFEZE2FHEE - BRI E
ERERZESER  HEBEGHEXERLS
FTSABRA I B IR AT -

ERLZEeTERRERENMEE 2 BEZ R
RRATF 2 BATERIRIG ARG 8 R - U
RERERBBRGZEMEHFE FERPHE
BrmERERAEBER @ AR
yu°ﬁ/\%Z:|: 7—?¢+ A= JF HJLEF
ERZEGRTTAREGE -
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According to the current terms of reference, meetings of the Audit
Committee shall be held at least 4 times a year. 4 meetings were held for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The attendance of each member is
set out as follows:

REBEWERE  FEZEEQEFAEEDET
AREH - BEZTZ-ZFF+-_A=1+—HILF
B BRZEGERITTINGERE - SAUKEZ
LR ERES AT

Attendance/

Number of

meetings held

HiE BT

Name of members of Audit Committee BERZEENERSR SERY
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie (Chairman) ML (FRE) 4/4
Mr. Zhou Weibo FBfE R S 4/4
Ms. Sheng Ting BisLt 4/4

During the year under review, the Group did not have an internal audit
function but had appointed an external consultant to review the material
controls of the Group on a continuous basis and aims to cover all major
operations of the Group on a cyclical basis. The Board, through the Audit
Committee, reviewed the appraisal performed by the an independent
auditor on the Company’s risk management and internal control systems.
Based on information furnished to it and its own observations, the Board
is satisfied that the present internal control and risk management systems
of the Group are effective and adequate in all material respects.

At the meetings held during the year, in performing its duties in
accordance with its terms of reference, the work performed by the Audit
Committee included:

(@ review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system and risk management of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

(b)  recommendation to the Board, for the approval by shareholders, of
the re-appointment of the external auditor and approval of their
remuneration;

(c)  determination of the nature and scope of the audit; and

(d)  review the financial statements for the relevant periods.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3
independent non-executive Directors and 1 executive Director. Ms.
Sheng Ting is the chairlady of the Remuneration Committee. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available at the
Company’s website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include
consulting the chairman of the Board about their remuneration proposals
for other executive Directors, making recommmendation to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management and the Remuneration Committee has adopted the
approach under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the code provisions to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.

Meeting of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a
year. 1 meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2020.
During the meeting, remuneration packages, performance and service

yMEES

RAARIRZE—ZZHF=A=Z+ BRI HA3IMNE
SIFHMITEERNRRITESAR M@,\E
((FHEZESE]) - BERTAFNEESE
YHZEe s BEGEIHNAA T%MJ&&H@‘??&@?
4k o

FWEEgrACRBERIENESS LRSS
ﬁ:%tﬁtmegﬂ TEFZHMEZEERAL AR
EEREAEEE B R EERESSE
LEs - FEEs EWPHHIJMYB 1.2(c)(ii) 15
IETZHW?é%A FZEBTEERSLE
BEHMTE

//\Eﬂ#ﬁc ﬁFﬁ@HKE\
@Em@i_g_ ZE+_A=T—HLFERN
BITIRgH - -RNeRPHE EFHMEE =

contracts of the Directors had been reviewed and approved, no change EE&HEAW/\@EZ%&ET&H/E N 4 7 55 T 5 B
has been proposed to the remuneration policy. BRELHEMERE

The attendance of each member is set out as follows: BMKE 2 BBIERAETNAT -

Attendance/

Number of

meetings held

Name of members of HE BT

Remuneration Committee FHEEERERA 2ERE

Ms. Sheng Ting (Chairman) BiEr T (FRE) 11

Mr. He Keng =5 1/1

Mr. Zhou Weibo BER%E 11

Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie Pl E 11
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
was established on 22 March 2012 comprising the 3 independent non-
executive Directors and 1 executive Director. Mr. Zhou Weibo is currently
the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available at the Company’s website and on
the website of the Stock Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least once a year, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategies, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members (select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships), assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the Chairman; and reporting to the Board on its
decisions or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to have a well
diversified Board of Directors by considering a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural/education and
professional background, skills, knowledge and experience.

The Board consists of seven Directors, three of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee and Board are of
the view that the diversity of the Board is embodied in terms of age, skills,
expertise, knowledge and educational background.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy for directors. The factors
considered by the Nomination Committee in assessing candidates
include, but are not limited to: (a) the structure, size and composition of
the Board; (b) the diversity of the Board in terms of background, skill and
experience (including but not limited to gender, age, education and
professional background, skills, knowledge and experience); (c) the
compliance with the independence criteria set out in Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules for the appointment of independent non-executive
directors; and (d) any other relevant factors as determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time, and make
recommendations on appointing board candidates or re-appointing
existing members of the Board.

The appointments of directors will be proposed to the Board after the
Nomination Committee assesses the above factors. The Nomination
Committee will annually assess and report to the Board on the
composition of the Board in a context of diversity and keep an watch on
the implementation thereof.

Meeting of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year.
1 meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2020. Issues
concerning the structure, size and composition of the Board were
discussed.

The attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Attendance/

Number of

meetings held

Name of members of HE BT
Nomination Committee REZEEHERSB EETE
Mr. Zhou Weibo (Chairman) BRREE(FE) n
Mr. He Keng L E 11
Ms. Sheng Ting Bigrt+ 11
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung Eddie BRI E 11

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED 39

AT SRR D BR AR



Corporate Governance Report
s po S/ E
rEERAWRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board and reports regularly to the Board on financial position and
prospects of the business of the Company so as to enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report) for preparing the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group. The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders of
the Company. A statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate system of internal
controls and risk management within the Group and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The systems of internal controls and risk management are
designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations, to safeguard
assets and to ensure the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. They are also designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material
misstatement or loss can be avoided, and to manage and minimize risks
of failure in operation systems. The Company is committed to
implementing a stricter and more regulated internal control and risk
management procedures in the new financial year.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board engaged an
external consultant conduct a review on the Group’s internal control and
risk management systems and its effectiveness. No significant area of
concern that may affect the financial, operational, compliance, internal
control and risk management of the Group has been identified, and
considers them effective and adequate.

The Group conducts review of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems and its effectiveness regularly to ensure the
interest of shareholders is safeguarded.
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OBJECTIVES OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The objectives of the risk management and internal control framework of
the Group include:

° to strengthen the Company’s risk management and internal control
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules requirements;

o to establish and constantly improve the risk management and
internal control systems; and

° to keep baseline risks within the acceptable range.
THREE-TIER RISK MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess, mitigate and handle risks. At the first line of defence,
business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring
risks associated with each business or deal. The finance department, as
the second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, oversees and
reports risk management matters to the Board. It ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of defence is effective.
As the final line of defence, the Board together with audit committee of
the Company, with the professional advices and opinions from the
external professional Company by whom internal audit work of the Group
was conducted on annual basis, ensures that the first and second lines
of defence are effective through constant inspection and monitoring.

PRINCIPLES OF INTERNAL CONTROL

Our risk management and internal control systems involve five elements
as internal environment, risk assessment, control activities, information
and communication and internal supervision. The aim of internal control
is to reasonably guarantee the compliance of its operation and
management with regulations and laws, assets security, and authenticity
and integrity of financial report and related information, improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of operating activities and promote the
realization of development strategy of the Group.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for the appointment
of the external auditors, including the engagement of non-auditing tasks
and fees. During the year under review, the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
and the fees paid for the audit of the Group’s financial statements are set
out as follows:

SMNEB A B

ARREVZEGREZRBIMNEZEE - BIE3F
REBENTERER REBEFER  BEE
E(HR)EMETMERRAAEZHE_T—
ZE+ A=t RLFENPBRREAEZ
AEBFBRENNERBERHIIMOT

Fee paid/payable

e EBNNER

RMB’000

Services Rendered FriR St IR TS AREFIT
Audit Service EZRTE 529
Non-audit services IEEZ RS -
529

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zou Jing (“Ms. Zou”) and Mr. Cheng Ching Kit (“Mr. Cheng”) were
appointed as the joint company secretaries of the Company on 7
February 2018 and 11 June 2018 respectively. The biographical details
of Ms. Zou and Mr. Cheng are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”.

Mr. Cheng is a manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, and assists Ms. Zou in company secretarial affairs. The
primary corporate contact person of Mr. Cheng at the Company is Ms.
Zou.

According to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Zou and Mr.
Cheng have taken separately no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.
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INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company places great emphasis on its relationship and
communication with investors. The Company has numerous
communication channels, such as press conference and seminars, to
communicate with the media, analysts and fund managers. Designated
senior management staff holds dialogue with analysts, fund managers
and investors, who are also arranged to visit the Company and
investment projects from time to time, so as to keep them abreast of the
Group’s business and latest developments. In addition, investors can
also visit the Company’s website at www.ruiyuanhk.com for the most
updated information and the status of the business development of the
Group.

There had been no change in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020. Investors can
obtain the latest articles of association of the Company from the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management recognise the responsibility of
safeguarding the interest of Shareholders and provide highly transparent
and real-time information on the Company so as to keep the Shareholders
and investors abreast of the Company’s position and help them to make
the best investment decision. The Company believes that maintaining
good and effective communication with shareholders can facilitate the
Shareholders’ understanding of the business performance and strategies
of the Group. The Board and senior management also recognise the
responsibility of safeguarding the interest of the Shareholders. In order to
safeguard the Shareholders’ interest, the Company reports its financial
and operating performance to Shareholders through annual reports,
interim reports and quarterly reports. Shareholders can also obtain
information of the Group in time through annual reports, interim reports,
quarterly reports, announcements, circulars, press releases and the
Company’s website www.ruiyuanhk.com.

The annual general meetings are an appropriate forum for direct
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. Shareholders
can raise questions directly to the Board in respect of the performance
and future development of the Group at annual general meetings.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy to provide guidance to the
Board on whether to declare and distribute dividends. In order to keep
sufficient reserves for the future development of the Company, the Board
will appraise its dividend policy based on the operations and earnings,
cash flow, financial position, capital and other reserve requirements and
surplus, contractual restrictions and its overall financial conditions and
any other conditions or factors that the Board considers relevant, so as
to determine or recommend dividends for any financial year and also the
number, amount and form of dividends paid.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”).

RIGHT TO CONVENE EGM

Pursuant to Article 52 of the Articles, shareholders individually or jointly
holding 10% or more of the Company’s issued shares carrying voting
rights requests in writing to the Company’s registered office: Factory No.
3, Laiyan Road West Economic Development Zone (South Side) Yu Yao
Zhejiang China for convening of an extraordinary general meeting.

To convene a general meeting, the Company shall give written notices no
less than 45 days before the date of the meeting, informing all registered
shareholders of the matters proposed to be considered at the meeting
and the date and place of the meeting. Shareholders who intend to
attend the meeting shall return the written reply of attendance to the
Company to be received by the Company 20 days before the date of the
meeting.

The Company shall calculate, according to the written replies received 20
days before the date of the meeting, the number of shares carrying voting
rights represented by the shareholders attending the meeting. The
Company may convene a general meeting if the number of shares
carrying voting rights represented by shareholders intending to attend
aggregates to more than half of the total number of shares carrying such
rights. If not, the Company shall make an announcement within five days,
once again notifying the shareholders of the matters proposed to be
considered and the date and place of the meeting. Once an
announcement has been so made, the Company may convene the
general meeting.
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Shareholders requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting shall abide by the following procedures:

(i) Two or more shareholders holding in aggregate 10% or more of the
shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought to be held
shall sign a written requisition in one or more counterparts in the
same form and contents, requiring the board of Directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting
thereof and stating the matters to be considered at the meeting.
The board of Directors shall, as soon as possible after receipt of the
requisition, convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting thereof. The aforementioned number of shares held by the
shareholders shall be calculated based on the date of submission
of the written requisition.

(i) If the board of Directors fails to issue a notice to convene such
meeting within 30 days from the date of receipt of the requisition,
the requisitioning shareholders may themselves convene such
meeting within 4 months of the receipt of the requisition by the
board of Directors. In so convening a meeting, the requisitioning
shareholders shall adopt a procedure as similar possible as that of
general meetings convened by the board of Directors.

All reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitioning shareholders as a
result of the failure of the board of Directors to convene a meeting and so
convening such meeting themselves as mentioned above shall be borne
by the Company and deducted from any sums due to such defaulting
Directors by the Company.

RIGHT TO PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

Pursuant to Article 54 of the Articles, the Board of Directors, the Board of
Supervisors and shareholders severally or jointly holding 3% or above
shares of the Company shall be entitled to submit proposals to the
Company at the general meeting.

Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 5% or above of shares of the
Company shall have the right to submit a temporary proposal to the
convener in writing 10 days prior to the holding of the general meeting;
the convener shall, within 2 days after its receipt of such a proposal,
issue an supplementary notice of the general meeting, and announce the
contents of the temporary proposal. If the listing rules of the place where
the Company’s shares are listed provide otherwise, such rules shall also
be complied with.

IR EBROHBRRRAGHEBRIRREH
fEE IR T IR e

() ABREEZBETNgELEERIAED
BE 19 10% LA (5 10%) B9 RR 5 sk & /9 & BA
FHRRER AR E — (e E D BEE
AANBHNEEE R RFEFCEHABRN
BRASHEENBRRSE  YHPSH
MEl EEgERIARETDERERE
ERREAFBERHREASRELEIRES
oo IR BURRRIRHEEEZ KA

s
= o
B

(i) WEFSEWREFIAEREREIOANE
BRHNBHSHNBN  IBEZEROR
RAUNEEEEWEZEREBI4EANE
TEREE  BRSHENBFEZ R4

HERFARRRAGHIZFER -

RRAEEGREMLZRBITEHEMBITAE
WERITEHN  EMEENAEER  EEARQ
AASE - WA RRMNKBEENFBEHR -

RBERAELRERRZEF

RBERMAFEAG EFE  EFFREBEX
EUHFBEARARF%IIA RN HRER - BER
BIRARE EMAARRERESR -

BEEAEHIHFERRAS% I M EI IR -
BRERRAGEH10 AR L GRFIREYE®
ERAKA ARABREREREEBRRZR2A
NBELEBRRASHTBEN  XAEERFEROR
A o MARRFIRD ETHHE ETRAISERE -
FERIES MR EME °

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED 45

AT SRR D BR AR



Corporate Governance Report

3%

RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
shall be in writing and sent by post to registered office of the Company in
PRC: Factory No. 3 Laiyan Road West, Economic Development Zone
(South Side), Yuyao, Zhejiang, China for the attention of Ms. Zou Jing,

the Joint
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Company Secretary.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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A\ Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY
COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhejiang
RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 54 to 142, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BEEEE (5E) SHMEHMERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

&8 S TBIEETTE 1S 0E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB8,496,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 and, as of that
date, the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB14,177,000 and capital deficiency of approximately
RMB39,967,000. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth
in Note 1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn.
QOur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters

RRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EANERNAEERRELSER

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”)
of trade receivables
EWESERFAHREEER(RHACESER BE
Refer to Note 18 and 34(b) to the consolidated
financial statements

2B MR EM T 18 KX 34(b)

ECL for trade receivables are based on management’s
estimate of the lifetime ECL to be incurred, which is
estimated by taking into account the credit loss
experience, ageing of overdue trade receivables,
customers’ repayment history and customers’ financial
position and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which
involve a significant degree of management judgment.

EWE GEFRNEHEEBEENRBEEBYHESL
W FRBEEEENMGE Mz HEREER
BER SHEKEZERNER  EPHNERCE
K& P GRS IA B 38 B e BRI ) B R AR B AR R Y
B IEELEERKER LIS RERENHE -

We have identified ECL assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter because the assessing ECL of
trade receivables is a subjective area as it requires the
management’s judgment and uses of estimates.

B EKE ZEFOHFAREEBRTEHER R
REFE AANEERUBEZEFNFEHEEBR
HFEEEEBETHE SLERMET - TUZRI AT EE
S

Our procedures in relation to management’s ECL assessment
on trade receivables included:

BMEBEERENRKE FRFINEBHEEEETENIETE
&

o reviewing and assessing the application of the Group’s
policy for calculating the ECL;
e  EEYWME EXEEHEEBEAEBERNEREN

° evaluating the techniques and methodology in the ECL
model against the requirements of HKFRS 9;

e HREBUBMSLREIORNELR - ERAREEEE
BE By EH R R K 07 0%

° assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information used by
management to form such judgements, including testing
the accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and forward-
looking information and examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year and assessing
whether there was an indication of management bias
when recognising loss allowances;

e WABREEREREAZFZFHEMANESRTHEIRE
BHEERBEHANSGEN  BEARELENEEN
AW FEERBEREERREE BB KA
MERETEERAR RBFEAVBRFEHHEBRENE
BEE UK HERREEEERESFEEEER
EMTR

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED 49

AT SRR D BR AR



Independent Auditor’s Report
BN 2B E S

Key audit matters

RRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

AN ERNAEEERELER

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade e
receivables is approximately RMB5,317,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB192,000).

RIZBEZZEF+_A=+—B ERESEFZEE
BERHAR 5,317,000 7T (&0 49 AR 192,000 7T
BIRERE )

Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborating explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and
mMEREEMARZEFRAHNEERNEKRE HEROMR
R WREBERERERIFUHERE  JINRERS
B THERPNFEEBHE REREFPHNELK
BEBREERBERETFHEMBE R

Details of the trade receivables are set out in Note 18to  ®
the consolidated financial statements.

FEWE 5 IR 2 B H N R A M SR MIFE 18

° checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 to the
underlying financial records and post year-end settlement
to bank receipts.

s MWMEBEN_ZT_TEF+_A=+—BHEBMBIHER
BEIE 5 BR R RERIE R RIRITRIB N FERGEEE

OTHER INFORMATION H g n

BERREFAHEMENEER - KW ENBRF
BAFRHNER - BTRIEEA M EHRER LR

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual

report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 March 2021

Kwok Chi Kwong
Practising Certificate Number PO1911
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

=ANE — 4 A N4
e Bm MEMEEmE S
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-ZTHE+-_A=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—ECEH —ZE-AF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥T T AREEF T
Revenue gy 5 35,858 66,558
Cost of sales SHE KR (35,377) (64,429)
Gross profit EF 481 2,129
Other income HAw A 7a 22 200
Other gains and losses Hiplhzs & E1E 7b (123) -
Impairment losses under expected credit FBEE EEEBERIEB T
loss model, net of reversal BERE - HRED 9 6 (363)
Selling expenses HERX (119) (96)
Administrative expenses THER (4,511) (5,370)
Finance costs B RN 8 (4,270) (3,323)
Loss before taxation MRELATEE 10 (8,514) (6,823)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frig®ige, (Fx) 11 18 (21)
Loss and total comprehensive loss &2 T #H A FE{L
for the year attributable to FREBEERZHEBEAEE
owners of the Company (8,496) (6,844)
Loss per share BREE
(RMB’ cents) (AR®%) 15
Basic YN (1.70) (1.37)
Diluted e N/A FER N/A 73 FA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“re MR

At 31 Deoember 2020
RZZEZZEF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥T AREEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Plant and equipment = KR 16 131 193
131 193
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 17 - 241
Trade receivables EUNE 5ER R 18 5,317 11,770
Prepayments, deposits and TENFUE - ek
other receivables HithfEUBR X 19 8 294
Paid in advances EANSEINE S - 119
Bank balances and cash WITHEB LIRS 20 10,147 10,979
15,472 23,403
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FERTE SRR 21 7,402 10,214
Other payables and accruals HihEN R R IEETE R 22 1,239 1,240
Contract liabilities AHEE 23 153 153
Amount due to a director EN—ZEEHIE 24 10,403 11,357
Amount due to a major shareholder BN —REZ2RERIE 25 6,000 -
Loan from a major shareholder KE—BITERBZEX 26 - 44,864
Dividends payables FERT AR B 27 4,440 4,440
Tax payable FERIFRIR 12 12
29,649 72,280
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAETFHE (14,177) (48,877)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Loan from a major shareholder RE—REERRHER 26 25,921 -
NET LIABILITIES BafE (39,967) (48,684)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRRHE
Share capital A% A 28 50,000 50,000
Reserves ] (89,967) (98,684)
CAPITAL DEFICIENCY B A (39,967) (48,684)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AN ULV

At 31 Deoember 2020
RZZEZZEF+=-A=+—H

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 142 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2021 and
are signed on its behalf by:

He Keng
I8
Director

g
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

] /_\ == \ 7 ,2.}-5,%
%/T\ = 1{ fm & @J ?%
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

VNGIE 7SN 3
Statutory
Share Capital Other surplus  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total
EER
R B Htfife EUN -k RitER ECHY
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARKTE ARETT ARETT AR%TR
(Note i) (Note i) (Note il
(Bt (B i) (PsEii)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 50,000 40,449 274,106 24,998 (431,393) (41,840)
Loss and total comprehensive  FABIER 2 EERBEE
loss for the year - - - - (6,844) (6,844)
Transfer 234 - - - 42 (42) -
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-AE+-A=+—-RHRK
1 January 2020 “2-ZF-F—H 50,000 40,449 274,106 25,040 (438,279) (48,684
Loss and total comprehensive  FREIE R 2 EEELE
loss for the year - - - = (8,496) (8,496)
Avising from loan from EFERE-BTERRIER
amajor shareholder (Note 26)  (Ffi s 26) - - 17,213 - - 17,213
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+-A=+—H 50,000 40,449 291,319 25,040 (446,775) (39,967)
Notes: B &E
i) CAPITAL RESERVE (i) ERFHE
Capital reserve includes the share premium arising from the issuance of H shares after BARBEBEARRBITHRELEOKRMDEE(SHEB
deduction of the respective share issuance costs of the Company. BN BEITAA) ©
(i) OTHER RESERVE i) HttfHE
Other reserve represents the waiver of the amounts due to a former major shareholder HihF RPN AT EERRRRELBEREEN—2
upon change in shareholding in the Company in previous year, the difference between AMEZRERIE  RE—BEFEZREERZDATFERR
the fair value of the loan from a major shareholder and the amount received in May ZE—tFRARBNFIEZENEE R TF
2017, gain on extinguishment of the loan from a major shareholder in May 2020 as HRABEKRE —BEERRZ BERZ Ha (M 26 A
described in Note 26, and waiver of amount due to a major shareholder. i) REA R REN — R EARENIE o
(i)  STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE (i) EERHLES

The Articles of Association of the Company and its subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) require the appropriation of 10% of their profit
after income tax determined under the PRC accounting standards each year to the
statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
According to the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association, under normal
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of the Company’s production and
operation. For the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of the registered share
capital.

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

AREREFEREARKME ([P E ) KZAKHERR
MRARERAAURE  SFABREBEPEGHERGFE
BBRFIEREEFNET10%BNEERBRAES  HEE
EERBAESEREDFEMBRANE0% B IE - REAR
RAMRAERBURE  E—RERT  EEBHRD
HMEEAELHEER  BRBRARBERARRMNEE
REE R EERBAEEETRAMNS  AERH
RESHHRBG LR EMAAHE) 25%
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\/T\ Eﬁi/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Loss before taxation BR 7% Al B 18 (8,514) (6,823)
Adjustments for: ERT5IIEE A
Bank interest income HRITHEWA = @)
Depreciation of plant and equipment s K & T E 42 47
Written-off of trade and other receivables sHE 2 & E At FE UL AR 3K 54 -
Finance costs & R AR 4,270 3,323
Impairment losses under expected credit FEHREEEEEAETRESE
loss model, net of reversal MpR#EEME (6) 363
Written-off of property, plant and equipment Gk E S N 20 -
Operating cash flows before movements &EESLEBHANLERSRE
in working capital (4,134) (8,092)
Decrease in inventories FERL 241 62
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables 1% Z 5 Bx 78 M fE U Z 4%
B () 6,426 (4,018)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TBRFIA - e REMEUERR
deposits and other receivables A, () 265 (186)
Decrease in paid in advances BREMRIER L 119 6,923
Decrease in trade payables FERTE S RIS (2,812) (366)
Decrease in other payables and accruals Hip R BRR R BT B RR (1) (984)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD = (1,219)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &Y E£KHME(FiA)RE 104 (2,880)
Income tax refunded/(paid) BiREL(BR)FiEHt 18 (10)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) && % FfHE (A BERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 122 (2,890)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\/T\ Eﬁi/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETH
Purchase of plant and equipment HEME &R = (205)
Interest received B U F B = 2
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & Z 8 ff FE & 545 = (203)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Repayments to a director M—BEEEN (1,492) -
Advance from a director KE—ZBEEEN 538 11,357
Repayment to a major shareholder M—R2EZRFER = (7,843)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM ®t&SEE (FiA), FiBH 438
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (954) 3,514
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND ¢ RIS ZEER (H4), /&
CASH EQUIVALENTS B (832) 421
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REANBESRBESSEEH
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 10,979 10,558
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERNESRRESEEER
THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash BRTTHESHR RIS 10,147 10,979
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
T E B IS IR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE

1.

60

—TCEFT A=+ RALLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Control Technology Company Limited
(the “Company”) is a joint stock limited liability company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and its
shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is
Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Robot Co., Ltd, a company
incorporated in the PRC. Its ultimate holding company is Hangzhou
Qindie Electronic Equipment Company Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. He
Keng, who is also the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“BMB”). The functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) is RMB.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are sales of controller systems for electronic equipment
and electronic component and subassembly for electronic
appliances in the PRC.
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
irE B ISR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION — Continued
Going concern

During the year, the Group incurred a net loss for the year of
approximately RMB8,496,000. At 31 December 2020, the Group
had net current liabilities of approximately RMB14,177,000 and
capital deficiency of approximately RMB39,967,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liability in the normal course of business.
Nevertheless, the Directors have performed an assessment of the
Group’s future liquidity and cash flows, taking into account the
following relevant matters:

(i) The Directors will strengthen to implement measures aiming
of improving the working capital and cash flows of the Group
including closely monitoring the general administrative
expenses and operating costs; and

(i)  a major shareholder and a director of the Company confirm
to provide adequate financial support to the Group as is
necessary to ensure its continuing operation for a period at
least twelve months from the date of this report; and

The Directors consider that after taking into account the
abovementioned financing plans and financial support of the major
shareholder, the Group will have sufficient working capital to satisfy
its present requirements for at least the next twelve months from
the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments would have
to be made to the consolidated financial statements to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively.
The effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

FR AEBHESFRIFBEEHARE
8,496,000 c M- ZE-_ZTF+ - A=+—
A A5EEMNRDEABEFEOARE
14,177,0007C & & N & 4 09 A R &
39,967,0007C - Z S BN B REETFTEE
ATHEEM A A EEEERELE
WEENEEERES - Bt ~NEE 8
EBEAEHRAEBREPBEEESE T
EEEEBHBE - A EFCEHAEE
MARRARDESRRSREFETHE - B
A RIAT RS

) EEFHNRERSEENAREEE
EekBeRnENER  BRTUE
E-RITHEBERRZERAN : &

(i) ARR—BEERER—BREZCHE
PRI B R M A S B R B S0 B 75
S5 ARASEEAE ARE R
e+ —@ANBSEEE &

EEZRA RFARLABEFEREIER
ROMBR - AEEKAEBTRENEE
B UBITERZFHRAMB MR AR
Hfest 2 DR R+ —EANREFR - A
b FEMBRRDVENFECLERER
Bl MARBETRARBREELERER
¥ AUESEAVMBRRTZEEEE
DHMBRERRE SR A EELZH
EEHRREEALEERBEERAR
DHEHDBRRDEERAME - %ZFH
B2 HBUWRNGAMTERR T R -

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED 61

AT SRR D BR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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“ECEE+ A=+ -RALFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments
provide a new definition of material that states “information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The
amendments also clarify that materiality depends on the
nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in the context of the
financial statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
irE B ISR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year — Continued

2.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3

Definition of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments clarify that while
businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for
an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a
business. To be considered a business, an acquired set of
activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs. The
amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to
determine whether a substantive process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Under
the optional concentration test, the acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents,
deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to apply the
optional concentration test is available on transaction-by-
transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group but may impact future periods
should the Group make any acquisition.

FEREEEEMBREERN(EH
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RAFERBEIERNEETEBYH
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REBEEDR 28 »
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE-_ZT-TF+-_A=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

2.

64

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year — Continued

2.3

24

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments modify specific hedge
accounting requirements to allow hedge accounting to
continue for affected hedges during the period of uncertainty
before the hedged items or hedging instruments affected by
the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a result
of the on-going interest rate benchmark reform. The
amendments are relevant to the Group given that it applies
hedge accounting to its benchmark interest rate exposures.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS
16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time in the
current year. The amendment introduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the
following conditions:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year —

Continued

2.4 Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS

16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions — Continued

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes were not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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2.

66

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

AW N =

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 24

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20207?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective — Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework

The amendments:

update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations so
that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) instead of Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2010 issued in
October 2010);

add a requirement that, for transactions and other events
within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the
Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination; and

add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective — Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 relate to
the modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements and disclosure
requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
to accompany the amendments regarding modifications and hedge
accounting.

o Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and
lease liabilities. A practical expedient is introduced for
modifications required by the reform (modifications required as
a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and made on an economically equivalent basis). These
modifications are accounted for by updating the effective
interest rate. All other modifications are accounted for using
the current HKFRSs requirements. A similar practical expedient
is proposed for lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16;

o Hedge accounting requirements. Under the amendments,
hedge accounting is not discontinued solely because of the
interest rate benchmark reform. Hedging relationships (and
related documentation) are required to be amended to reflect
modifications to the hedged item, hedging instrument and
hedged risk. Amended hedging relationships should meet all
qualifying criteria to apply hedge accounting, including
effectiveness requirements; and

o Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures in order
to allow users to understand the nature and extent of risks
arising from the interest rate benchmark reform to which the
Group is exposed to and how the entity manages those risks
as well as the entity’s progress in transitioning from interbank
offered rates to alternative benchmark rates, and how the
entity is managing this transition.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective — Continued

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures deal
with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically,
the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted
for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on
the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(iy  if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met at
the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does
not test compliance until a later date; and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2020, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities as at 31 December 2020.
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2.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective — Continued

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments specify that the costs of any item that were
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management (such as
samples produced when testing whether the relevant property,
plant and equipment is functioning properly) and the proceeds from
selling such items should be recognised and measured in the profit
or loss in accordance with applicable standards. The cost of the
items are measured in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that, when an entity assesses whether a
contract is onerous in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the unavoidable costs
under the contract should reflect the least net cost of exiting from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any
compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. Costs of
fulfilling the contract include incremental costs and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The amendments are applicable to contracts for which the Group
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations as at the date of initial
application.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — Continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective — Continued

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following
standards.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing whether
modification of terms of original financial liability constitutes
substantial modification under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or the
lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS
16 removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement
relating to leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to remove
any potential confusion.

HKAS 41 Agriculture

The amendment ensures consistency with the requirements in
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by removing the requirement in
paragraph 22 of HKAS 41 to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable individual HKFRSs, which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”"). These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (“GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

Continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Revenue from contracts with customers — Continued

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange for dissimilar
products, the Group recognises all of the following:

(@ revenue for the transferred products in the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
(therefore, revenue would not be recognised for the products
expected to be returned/exchanged);

(b)  arefund liability/contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) for
its right to recover products from customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Revenue from contracts with customers — Continued

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time value
of money if the timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains a
significant financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing is explicitly
stated in the contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to
by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of
the associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the transfer
of the associated goods or services in which the Group adjusts for
the promised amount of consideration for a significant financing
component, the Group applies a discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. The relevant interest
expenses during the period between the advance payments were
received and the transfer of the associated goods and services are
accounted for on the same basis as other borrowing costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Revenue from contracts with customers — Continued
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in the
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose. Plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Plant and equipment — Continued

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is determined as

the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on plant and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its plant and equipment to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). The recoverable amount of plant and equipment are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Impairment on plant and equipment — Continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application or arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Leases — Continued
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of buildings that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Taxation — Continued

Deferred tax — Continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. BEARSTEX—#&
Continued
Financial instruments — Continued TRITHA — &
Financial assets — Continued EHEE — &
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets CTREENSHEREETNE — &

— Continued

A financial asset is held for trading if:

ERMEENATERDBAFKIEES :

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in . WHEZEEFTZERARNITMEE - X

the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified . RYPERFE D ASESEFEERER
financial instruments that the Group manages together and E#feMmIAAGHN—HD  WH
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or B ERSEBENER ; 3¢

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a . HETAT R - IR EEREER E

hedging instrument.

TRPFSh T A -

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset AN+ AN 52 B A] AN AT JREE M A5 AR T IR 6
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI A RATFEFAEMEEEEAEZ
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces CREERTERAZAFEFAERTE

an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial assets — Continued

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets at amortised cost which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

3.

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

Continued

Financial instruments — Continued
Impairment of financial assets — Continued
(i) Significant increase in credit risk — Continued

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that result in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued
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92

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets — Continued

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

3.

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Impairment of financial assets — Continued

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL — Continued
For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:
o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with
the exception of trade receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified either as financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
amount due to a director, amount due to a major shareholder,
dividends payables and loan from a major shareholder, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Financial instruments — Continued

Financial liabilities and equity — Continued

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are modified, the
Group assess whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors. If qualitative
assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers that the terms
are substantially different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any
fees received, and discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part
of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or
modification is considered as non-substantial modification when
such difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do not
result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant financial
liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial liabilities’ original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities
and are amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss
at the date of modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise of cash on hand and at banks with a maturity of
three months or less. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and short-term deposits as defined above.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that
is preparing its financial statements (“reporting entity”).

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to a reporting entity if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(i) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Related parties — Continued

(b)  An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the
same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(vy  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an
entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting
entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the reporting entity.

3. EXESFBEEX-#&

BEn — &
b) (HERNTE T GRT - BIR2RK

ERBRE

() ZERHEREEBER-%H
WK B RE (AR RE - B
REALRAENBARZEESR
BaE)

i —FHEBRSZ BERNBER
Al ELE(RS BB
BEEETKE RRMEE R
AIRAZERE) -

(i) MEEBHYARA-—2=7

BhE -

vy —HEBARE=FER
¥ ms— E‘&%?%EZ
EEMNBE QT -

V) “ZERSEWTRENEZE
%ﬁﬁ EHE ﬁL?ytHJEE

S BREBAR NG & -

ﬁe SR 5 ABEBAE TR

AR HE B RO (B £ 71 R 2
BEHE

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LII\/IITED

AT RER RN BRA

5d

S

i
o H& il

j‘

J

-kH- (Bt

=

99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

= BRIt

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Bz
3.

100

“ECEE+ A=+ -RALFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Continued

Related parties — Continued

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the reporting
entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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& BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE—

4.

TR+ AT RLESE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimation (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the Group accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessments of the going concern assumptions involve making
judgement by the Directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are inherently
uncertain. The Directors consider that the Group has the ability to
continue as a going concern and the major events or conditions,
which may give rise to business risks, that individually or collectively
may cast significant doubt about the going concern assumptions
are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainly at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses provision
matrix to calculate ECL for the trade receivables which are
individually insignificant. The provision rates are primarily on the
debtors’ aging profiles as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.
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ZTF+_A=t—RILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
— Continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — Continued
Provision of ECL for trade receivables — Continued

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in Notes 18 and 34(b).

Net reversal of impairment loss of approximately RMB6,000 (2019:
impairment loss of approximately RMB363,000) was recognised for
the year.

Provision for claim

During the current and prior years, the Group had been involved in
a dispute (Note 30). The Directors determine the provision for claim
based on their best estimates according to their understanding of
legal advice. Where the final outcome of the claim and negotiation
with the respective party is different from the estimation made by
the directors, such difference will impact the provision for claims in
the year in which such determination is finalised. As at 31
December 2020, the provision for claim was approximately
RMB86,000 (2019: RMB86,000).
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5.

REVENUE 5. W&
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () HEEFPENMNWED MR
customers
2020 2019
—E-EH —nE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
Type of goods EmEn
Sales of controller systems for electronic ~ $4EEFHEREF TR
equipment and electronic component ZHISSREGRET
and subassembly for electronic F DB1¢
appliances 35,858 66,558
Timing of revenue recognition W e FERR R B
At point in time R 2h 35,858 66,558

AT RER RN BRA
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REVENUE — Continued

Bz
5.

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of controller systems for electronic equipment
and electronic component and subassembly for
electronic appliances (“electronic products”)

The Group sells electronic products to the wholesale market.
Revenue is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been delivered to the
wholesaler’s specific location (“delivery”). Following the
delivery, the wholesaler has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the risks
of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The normal
credit term is 90 days upon delivery.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for electronic
products such that the above information does not include
information about revenue that the Group will be entitled to
when it satisfies the remaining performance obligations under
the contracts for sales of electronic products that had an
original expected duration of one year or less.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purpose, the Group operates in one business unit
based on its products, and has only one reportable and operating
segment which is controller systems for electronic equipment and
electronic component and subassembly for electronic appliances.

Geographical information

The Group’s business is primarily operated in the PRC. All of the

Group’s revenue is attributable to customers in the PRC.

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets by
geographical area in which the assets are located has not been
presented as they are all located in the PRC.
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BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

6.

7a.

7b.

SEGMENT INFORMATION — Continued 6. oHWEHR—&
Major customers FEEF
Turnover from customers of the corresponding years contributing PAERAEE - REYASEEAEXBEE
over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as follows: FRIE10% ME P 2 e EEHmT ¢
2020 2019
—EDEF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T
Customer A ZEA 18,455 18,844
Customer B ZFB 17,111 27,977
Customer C ZFEC - 6,987
OTHER INCOME 7a. HfA
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTIT
Bank interest income RITHI B WA = 2
Sundry income I A 22 198
22 200
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7b. Hihlz=m R EE
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Loss on written-off of plant and equipment W = K 2% 20 -
Loss on written-off of trade and other WEEE 5 M EMEWER 2 EiE
receivables 54 _
Loss on written-off paid in advance WEETE A 2 B iR 49 -
123 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-T-TF+-A=+HLFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WERA
2020 2019
—E-EHF —FE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Imputed interest expense on loan from KE—RETERFRERZ
a major shareholder HET AR 4,270 3,323
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED 9. BHFEBRKRIENAESS
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL MREE
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Impairment losses reversed/(recognised) on:  Ft N3l E A (FER) FEE S
— Trade receivables — EWE ZERR 6 (363)

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 34(b).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

10. FRHBATEE

2020 2019
—B-FF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Loss before taxation has been arrived BrE AT BB kR
at after charging: LATNIEE -
Staff costs, excluding chairman, directors’ BIRA(TEREERE -
and supervisors’ emoluments EENEEWS)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind — ¥% « TE& K EMEWEF 871 1,557
— Redundancy compensation — %ﬁéﬁﬁf‘ﬁ 1,253 -
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions IRIRTEFI B3R 12 55
Total staff costs #8 TR 2,136 1,612
Depreciation of plant and equipment B KRR EITE 42 47
Auditor’s remuneration ZEA 2 529 547
Cost of inventories recognised BHERERAINEERA
as an expense 35,367 63,928
Net foreign exchange losses HNE B5 18 5 RE - 15
Expense relating to short-term lease Mg A SRR 190 140
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TECRFE+ A=t HLFE
INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

. BB (ER) X

2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFT

PRC enterprise income tax Bl PTISHR
— Current year —AEE = 22
— Overprovision in prior year — BEFEHBEERE (18) (1)
Income tax (credit)/expense FTiSf (E%),Fx (18) 21
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BERECEMRETE(TREMGEEHE]D
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of REEMGREEREN B -TTN\F

the Company and the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

According to the normal statutory PRC EIT law and relevant rules,
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021, qualified small and
thin-profit enterprises with an annual taxable income of RMBH1
million or less is applicable to the effective EIT rate of 5%. Where its
annual taxable income exceeds RMB1 million but does not exceed
RMBS3 million (inclusive), the RMB1 million portion will be subject to
an effective EIT rate of 5%, whereas the excess portion will be
subject to the effective EIT rate of 10%.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain
subsidiaries of the Company have been qualified as small and thin-
profit enterprises which can enjoy preferential tax rate in the related
period.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the Group did not generate
any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for that years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

11.

12.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE — Continued 11.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss

Frg®i (E%) X — &

FARSHAXTAGAEEREME2E

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and W RFHIBR R E B SR T -
other comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —FE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBTIT
Loss before taxation BREAIEE (8,514) (6,823)
Tax at the statutory applicable tax rate of 25% &5 & i 3 i % 25%
(2019: 25%) —NEF 25%)HE
B IE (2,129) (1,706)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MBS E N AR A
for tax purposes Mg E 1,114 1,005
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERARBAIRIEE RN
recognised f)‘ﬁ"&’ Z- 1,017 809
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR A R %2 2 -
Statutory tax concession ETERUIE SR = (86)
Over provision in previous year B FERERE (18) (1)
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year FREH (E®R) X (18) 21
DIVIDENDS 12. B2

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: Nil), nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period.
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fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

13. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN,
DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’

EIRK(BEXE EERES
<)

EMOLUMENTS)

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREEF T
Salaries, wages and other benefits in kind e TENEMEYER 2,347 1,782
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RREFIET B R 15 55
2,362 1,837

The PRC, other than Hong Kong R (B BRI

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Company
and those subsidiaries, which operated in the PRC, are required to
contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for all its
employees. The state-sponsored retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees.
Under the state-sponsored retirement plan, the Group has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions, a total
contribution of approximately RMB15,000 (2019: RMB55,000) was
made by the Group in respect of this scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

14. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 14. XF EBSREEME

EMOLUMENTS

Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2019: nine)
chairman, directors and four (2019: three) supervisors were as

follows:

Year ended 31 December 2020

I -ESNEEME
ENSEMNER(ZE-NEF  AR)EE
EEROB(ZT-NF: =ZR)ESHM
(N

BE_E_FF+-A=1—HILFE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme
Name Fees in kind contributions Total
- 31 BB
#e g RENERN e Eoh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. He Keng (Chairman) WELE(LE) - 60 3 63
Ms. Wu Shanhong WAL - - - -
Mr. Chen Weigiang REBREE - 46 - 46
Mr. Ding Cheng (resigned on 25 March 2021) TR LA (R -E=—%
ZAZTHART) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUEHTES
Mr. Zhou Weibo RS 36 - - 36
Ms. Sheng Ting Biekt 36 - - 36
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie PEETE 45 - - 45
Supervisors Ex
Mr. Guo Fanggjang Prart(RZ2-2F
(appointed on 4 November 2020) +-ANBEET) - - - -
Mr. Shi Huanmiao REEHEE(R-Z_F
(resigned on 4 November 2020) +-AmAET) - - - -
Mr. Zhang Shenggen REREE = = - -
Mr. Chen Yuankang RIRETE - - - -
Total @t 117 106 3 226
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

14. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 14. ¥  EEREEME — &
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Chairman, directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments I EEREEMWE — &
— Continued
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_E—NF+-A=+—HIFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances bengfits
and bengfits scheme
Name Fees in kind contributions Total
e 2 RN
4 e RENEHN A @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Executive directors HiTE=S
Mr. He Keng (Chairman) BEE (1E) - 49 - 49
Ms. Wu Shanhong SRRt - - - -
Mr. Chen Weigiang BRERLE - 43 - 43
Mr. Ding Cheng TREE - 17 - 17
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Zhou Weibo BRREE(RZZ-NF

(appointed on 30 April 2019) MAZ+HEZA) 24 - - 24
Ms. Sheng Ting BEIL(RZE-NE

(appointed on 30 April 2019) NA=t+HEZA) 24 - - 24
Mr. Zhang Zhuoyong REAEERZT-NEF

(resigned on 30 April 2019) MA=1HET) 12 - - 12
Mr. Zhang Tieyi BHREER-Z-NE

(resigned on 30 April 2019) MA=TAEE) 12 - - 12
Mr. Kwok Kim Hung, Eddie PalExE 44 - - 4
Supervisors Bz
Mr. Shi Huanmiao REBERE - - - -
Mr. Zhang Shenggen RERIE - - - -
Mr. Chen Yuankang RITEREE - - - -
Total w3t 116 109 - 225
Note: BiRE -
No directors and supervisors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for the two HE T -_ZFE-_Z-AF+-_A=+—HIMW
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. 1I¢V‘I[ﬁ§$&@:$ﬁi§_kﬂ?iﬁﬁl;ﬁﬁtﬂ@ﬂéé
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BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

14. CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the Group, none
(2019: none) was a director of the Company whose emolument are

14.

IFE ESREEME - &

SREEENE

AEBRESSHFMALH BiE(ZZ
—NE:EB)ARRES HME#HIIN L

included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the XHEEERT - EHRAR(ZT—hF
remaining five (2019: five) highest paid individuals were as follows: FR)GaFMATHBEIT

2020 2019

—E_EHF —NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Salaries and other benefits in kind He REMEDEN 1,559 947

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRBFETEI R 7 16

1,566 963

Their emoluments were within the following band:

BEZMEHNTFIATEEN

Number of employees

EEAH
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,00078 7T
(equivalent to approximately RMB889,000  ({HE MR #J A K% 889,000 7T
(2019: RMB883,000)) —T-NF
AR 883,0007T)) 4 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & T2 1,500,000 77T
(equivalent to approximately (FHERK AR S89,001 TZ
RMB889,001 to RMB1,333,000 AR®1,333,0007C
(2019: RMB883,000 to RMB1,325,000)) —Z— N AR 883,000
= AR 1,325,0007T)) 1 -
5 5
No emolument have been paid by the Group to the directors and HE-_Z-_ZER-_F-NLF+=A

supervisors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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ZTF+_A=t—RILFE

CHAIRMAN, DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
EMOLUMENTS — Continued

Senior management’s emoluments — Continued

No bonuses paid or receivable which are discretionary or based on
the Company’s, the Group’s or any member of the Group’s
performance for the financial years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB8,496,000 (2019: RMB6,844,000) divided by the weighted
average number of 500,000,000 shares (2019: 500,000,000
shares) in issue during the year.

No diluted loss per share have been presented for the two years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as there was no diluted
potential ordinary share in issue for both years.
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16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. BMERRE

Computer
and office Motor
equipment vehicles Total
SR
WAELRE RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEF T AREFT ARETT
COST AR AR
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NEFE—H—H 619 - 619
Additions NE - 205 205
Written off Bii§i= (418) - (418)
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZE-h&E+=-HA=+—H
1 January 2020 E—E-_ZEF—HF—H 201 205 406
Additions NE - - -
Written off i 58 (201) - (201)
At 31 December 2020 N-EBE-_EF+=-BA=+—H - 205 205
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:itifg
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—H—H 584 - 584
Eliminated on written off T B 4 (418) - (418)
Provided for the year FNEE 12 35 47
At 31 December 2019 and EA_ —hE+=-HA=+—H
1 January 2020 —E-ZHF—A—H 178 35 213
Eliminated on written off Wﬁﬁ A 4 4 (181) - (181)
Provided for the year FAEHE 3 39 42
At 31 December 2020 NR-EBE-_FEFE+=-A=+—8H - 74 74
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_FEE+-H=+—H - 131 131
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=-A=+—H 23 170 193
Notes: BRE -
(@) The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line (@) titimEREREEE ARG ERAEERA

basis over the estimated useful lives less their residual values at the following

rates per annum:

Computer and office equipment
Motor vehicles

(b) During the years ended 31 December
office equipment was written off due to

20%
20%

2020 and 2019, certain computer and
wear and tear.
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18.
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—E-EFE+ A=+ —HBILEFE
INVENTORIES 17. 78
2020 2019
—ECBH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTFT
Raw materials R AT # - 13
Finished goods RIEK S - 228
= 241
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense included RMBEEE]ERFENS - BRAH
approximately RMBNIl (2019: RMB60,000) in respect of write- TZFERABEHNAREEZTL(ZZ—1
downs of inventory to net realisable value. F: AR®60,0007T) °
TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. BEWE ZERM
2020 2019
—ECEH ZZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREEF T
Trade receivables — contracts with customers JEWE SRR — B &4 5,509 12,476
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEBEEE (192) (706)
Trade receivables, net of impairment FEWE 5 0R5% - HBRAVE 5,317 11,770
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to its trade AEBGBETHESEFPHFEHEERALO
customers. H o
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES — Continued

The aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the
invoice date, net of impairment losses recognised was as follows:

18.

FEWE SRR — &

AT RiR#EZAZINERE SRR (EH
BrERERRRERE) B RE DT

2020 2019
—E-%F —T- 0T
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETT

0-90 days 0Z90H
91-180 days 912180H
181-365 days 181 £365H
Over 365 days 365 B

The aging analysis of trade receivables which were past due but
not impaired are as follows:

5,317 7,364
= 4,347
= 9
- 50
5,317 11,770

EEAERAENERE ZEROERR S
W :

2020 2019
—g-8F —T- A5
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Within 90 days past due BWEFOHIA
91 to 180 days past due #HI91 =180 H
Over 180 days past due wEF180 H A £

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set out in
Note 34(b).

- 4,347
- 9
- 50

- 4,406

U E B BB B RTf = BT EE34(0) ©
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19.

20.

“ECEE+ A=+ -RALFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

19.

BARIE - RERAMEYRIRNK

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREEF T

Prepayments TEfFRIE = 119

Deposits %4 - 21

Other taxes recoverables Hofth pE AR 18 8 162

Other receivables HoAth e R X = 2

8 294

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other receivables o M E i JE UK BR SRR B R B IR B B

are set out in Note 34(b). FE34(b) °

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. MITHEBRRES

Bank balances earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposits rates.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances and
concluded that the probability of defaults of the counterparty banks
are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is
provided.

At 31 December 2020, the bank balance and cash equivalents of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB10,147,000 (2019: RMB10,979,000). RMB is in not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange business.
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fra IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

21.

TRADE PAYABLES

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

21. ENESZRM

BERRNTHEEHNAQOAR -

RBERRRERZAZIINENE SRR

HRER DTSR T

2020 2019
i —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
0-90 days 0Z90H 6,654 9,394
91-180 days 91 £180H - 20
181-365 days 1812365 H = -
Over 365 days i@ 365 H 748 800
7,402 10,214

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22, HENRAKETEH
2020 2019
=T-THF —hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Other payables E A ETERER 588 434
Accruals FERTE A 565 720
Provision for claim (Note 30) RIEE A (F17E30) 86 86
1,239 1,240

ZHEJIANG RUIYUAN INTELLIGENT CONTROL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LII\/IITED 119
AT RER RN BRA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. EHNEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFT
Sales of controller systems for electronic HEETRIENEHIERRA
equipment and electronic component and MEFEINEFTHL
subassembly component and subassembly TR
for electronic appliances 153 153
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration AENBBEITEHEEE FREOEHER
received from customers for sales of controller systems for SMEFEENEF LR FEAERRR
electronic equipment and electronic component and subassembly qﬁzﬂxa’jiﬂﬁﬁ{ THE - B S ThIReE 2
component and subassembly for electronic appliances, for which R WHERE M HEER (SN
revenue is recognised at point in time. This will be recognised as RN B IEEH B ) B ERR o

revenue when control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been delivered to the wholesaler’s specific location.

Movements in contract liabilities SHEEEE
2020 2019
i 223 —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AEBTFT
Balance at 1 January R—A—H/4E 153 1,372
Decrease in contract liabilities as FRERT AL %)] #IBEM
a result of recognising revenue WaEHaHnasEmns
during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the period - (1,219)
Balance at 31 December Rt A=+—HB8&e 153 153
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24.

25.

26.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 24, BEF—BESEHE
2020 2019
—E-EHE —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREFT

Amount due to a director B —R2ESEHIA
Mr. Ding Cheng TR EE

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed
term of repayment.

10,403 11,357

AR REER - B MEREEENRY

AMOUNT DUE TO A MAJOR SHAREHOLDER 25, B¥—BFERENRE
2020 2019
—ETHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Due to a major shareholder EN—Z T ERRETIE
Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent W EiE A R 23 A
Robot Co., Ltd. B BR AR 6,000 -

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no fixed
term of repayment.

LOAN FROM A MAJOR SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2019, the loan with principal amount of
RMB46,000,000 from Zhejiang RuiYuan Intelligent Robot Co., Ltd.
(the “Major Shareholder”) is unsecured, interest free and was
repayable on 30 April 2020 (the “Original Loan”).

On the date of grant, the Group credited an amount of
approximately RMB9,483,000 to other reserve which represented
the difference between the fair value of the loan from a major
shareholder and the amount received.

26.

FZHEREER 2R NEETEERY

KE—EXTERRZERK

R_E—AFE+_A=+—8 @M1k
BREEREAROBRAR(TEERE])
R A SR A AR 46,000,000 TR E X
AEEA . B NER - T FM A
=t+REZ(RER] -

RIFH BHE - AEEE AR 9,483,000
TLET AHMEE(ERE—BETERRZE
AT EBUWEGIBHZEE) »
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Bz
26.

27.

TECTF+ A=+ —HIEFE

LOAN FROM A MAJOR SHAREHOLDER — 26. RE—BXTERRZER — &
Continued
On 1 May 2020, the Major Shareholder and the Company entered RZEZZTFRA—B TERFEARD
into a supplemental loan agreement, pursuant to which the RFIVHAER M Bt REFEA S
repayment date of the Original Loan principal amount of % AR 40,000,000 T HYEF B BEEE]
RMB40,000,000 has been revised to 30 April 2023 (the “Revised ECE-FMA=FH(KETER] -
Loan”). The Revised Loan is unsecured and interest-free. The KIEFTERRBEEFRLEE - RERAS
remaining balance of RMB6,000,000 of the Original Loan principal #4258 AR # 6,000,000 LAl EESK(EZE - I
is repayable on demand and recognised as amount due to a major REBEN—RBFEREZE(M:E25)
shareholder (Note 25). As there were substantial modifications in AR REERNERETEANIEL] WX
the terms of the Original Loan, these have been accounted for as ZEBARINABIVERER - RERIET
extinguishment of the Original Loan. On the date of the loan HE REEBLHAR17,213,000 LK
modifications, the Group credited an amount of approximately Ht AZHMEE - BEETERNAF
RMB17,213,000 to other reserve which represented the difference BN E R BN — 2 £ R R FE HEY
between the fair value of the Revised Loan and amount due to a HIRERZ MR ZRE -
major shareholder recognised, and extinguishment of the Original
Loan.
DIVIDENDS PAYABLES 27. BERRE
The dividends payables represent the final dividend declared for ERREENRZZEZENEFRERNERTIKN
Domestic Shares in 2004 which amounting RMB4,440,000. REARR B A AR 4,440,000 7T ©
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
Number of
shares Amount
R&HEE Kok
000 RMB’000
TFix AREEF T
Authorised, issued and fully paid: AT BETRAR ¢
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 R-—ZE—-h&FE—H—8"
and 31 December 2020 —BE-hAE+=-A=+—-HEK
—B-EF+ZHA=+—8H 500,000 50,000
Domestic shares (Note a) NER (MiEta) 370,000 37,000
H shares (Note b) H % (F13EDb) 130,000 13,000
500,000 50,000
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HE—

28.

29.

TR+ AT RLESE
SHARE CAPITAL — Continued

Notes:

(@) Pursuant to an approval dated 4 June 2003 issued by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, all the shares of the Company, which were issued and
fully paid, being 37,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of RMB1.00 each,
were sub-divided into 370,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of
RMBO0.10 each.

(b) On 14 November 2003, the Company commenced the trading of the newly
issued 130,000,000 H shares of RMB0.10 each on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, including 117,000,000 H shares to institutional investors by way of
placement and 13,000,000 H shares for subscription by members of the public
in Hong Kong under the Public Offer at the Offer Price of HKDO0.50 (equivalent
to approximately RMB69,550,000). Following the issue, the share capital and
capital reserve of the Company increased by approximately HKD12,150,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB13,000,000) and HKD52,850,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB56,550,000) respectively.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately RMB13,995,000 (2019: RMB11,681,000)
available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
unused tax losses incurred by the Company and PRC subsidiaries
can be carried forward for a period of five years. Other tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

28. |74 —

B EE

29.

&

RETEESEEEEZEER _FT=FXA
MM A BRI - BT RBR B A AR
5 Bl R% A 7 A R % 1.00 7T #9 37,000,000
EBREFALTREERARKOIOTH
370,000,000 i % 38 -

RZTZ=F+—A+HBE  AARFBRRER
FT GEM B # 7 % 17 #9130,000,000 i% & & A R
BO0A0TTHIHE - BRI & A E THER
& #9117,000,000 EHEL - A RIRIE AR HE
REEEOSOBTHAEBLRRALTREN
13,000,000 i H fi% (48 & 74 4 A R # 69,550,000
TT) o RINEATIE - ARBRARERREED B
& #912,150,0008 L(HH & RO AR %
13,000,0007T ) & 52,850,000 7t (18 & R 4 A
R # 56,550,000 7T) °

SR H

R &

HIR - AEBEA RS AH AR R

AR#13,995,000C (ZE—NF : AR
11,681,0007T) * AJ AR IESE AR EF © A
P 2R B i I SR 89 S AT FERIME - B 3
BREMEEHBEE - RIEFBEGRE
BRER - ARE &R BB AR EED
FEBRIEEEAERTHNEE - Hih
HIBEIE R ER B Ao -
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30.

124

ZoRFET A=t HLFE
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

LBTC 3663/2016 (the “Labour Tribunal Proceedings”)

On or around 7 November 2016, a former employee (the “Former
Employee”) was terminated by the Company on or around 5
October 2016 (the “Termination Date”), commenced proceedings
in the Labour Tribunal against the Company and its former
subsidiary, Hong Kong Wan Li Enterprise Co. Ltd. (“HK Wan Li")
(together, the “Respondents”), claiming a total amount of
approximately of HK$2,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,340,000) on a number of grounds, including (i) dismissal by
reason of redundancy, (i) failure to grant statutory holidays, (iii)
failure to grant annual leave, (iv) failure to pay long service payment,
(v) failure to make payment for overtime work, (vi) failure to pay end
of year payment, (vii) failure to pay bonus. Pursuant to the Order of
the Labour Tribunal dated 5 May 2017, the Labour Tribunal
Proceedings are presently stayed indefinitely with costs reserved.

As of the date hereof, the Company is not aware of any further
development to the Labour Tribunal Proceedings since 5 May
2017.

Taking into account the possible outcome and their obligations for
the above case, the Group has made a provision for claim of
approximately RMB86,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$96,000) for the year ended 31 December 2016 and no further
provision was made thereafter.

Since the above cases are still in progress, the Directors would
continue to exercise their due care in monitoring the progress of
the cases and would assess the adequacy of provision of claim and
the financial impact to the Group as and when appropriate. The
Directors believe that the amount of approximately RMB86,000 as
at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB86,000) represents the best
estimate of the Group’s liability having taken legal advice.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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BE_Z_TF+_A=T—HLHFE

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 31.

CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities during the year:

Amount

due to

B —&
BEENHE
RMB’000

HERSRERME
RMETBEENEE2E
TRAEFAEERFARESZDHEENEE
pd -
Total
Amount liabilities
dueto Loanfrom from
a major a major financing

a director shareholder shareholder activities
EA—= RE—F

FIH ZEN AERE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETET

At 1 January 2019
Changes in cash flows

Non-cash changes #ﬁé“ﬁ'ﬁ

At 31 December 2019 and WR=ZF

1 January 2020

Changes in cash flows

Non-cash changes #iﬁﬁ

At 31 December 2020

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ The balances with related parties at the end of reporting
period are disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial

statements.

(b)  The key management personnel of the Group comprises all
Directors and Supervisors, details of their emoluments are
disclosed in Note 14. The remuneration of the Directors is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market.

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through optimisation of the debt and equity

balance.

ﬂi—ﬂ—ﬂ

R-F-_FTHFE+_A=+—H

- 7,843 41,541 49,384
11,357 (7,843) - 3,514
- - 3,323 3,323
11,357 - 44,864 56,221
(954) - - (954)
= 6,000 (18,943) (12,943)
10,403 6,000 25,921 42,324
32. BEALIRS
@ HIEEREREEATHNEHREER
AV EMEMEMIBOAP -
b)) AEEXTZEBAEREMBEEK
EE EMeFBRERNE14-
EEFHFTHZESREAARER
TSR METE -
33. EXEKER

REBEBTRBEHEART BERAEEETH
FREFELEEY  RARKEREER
Rz MR MRS - ARRETREKX
[EIE
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT — Continued

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

33. EXERERE — &

RBEHRNERBBLXMAT

2020 2019
—§-%F - 0¥
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Debts (Note (i) &5 (B ()
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR NI
Net debt FERS

Capital deficiency (Note (ii)) B A (BEE (i)
Net debt to equity ratio FEBEERILE
Notes:

(i

The

Debts comprise amount due to a director/a major shareholder, and loan from a
major shareholder.

Capital deficiency includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners of the
Company.

As the Group had a net deficiency in capital at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group’s gearing ratio as at that date were not applicable. The directors of
the Company have given careful consideration on the measures currently
undertaken in respect of the Group’s liquidity position. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due based on the Group’s working capital sufficiency
plans.

Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital

requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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(@)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - =t
Categories of financial instruments (@ =mIEZEH
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEEK AR S REE 15,464 22,772
Financial liabilities o =L
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEEAATRE 2RV B (E 55,405 72,115
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (b) FEEMREENEERBER

(b)

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
dividend payable, amount due to a director/a major
shareholder and loan from a major shareholder are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The functional currency of the Group is RMB since
the Group operates in the PRC with all of the
transactions and financial assets at amortised cost are
denominated and settled in RMB. As a result, there is
no exposure to foreign currency risk.

FEENFEeRMTADERKES
R e REMBRAR - RIT4
BRRS  BNE SRR - BfER
AR FERTHRRIE - BT ARE - BN —
RER/ —EHEERFRFEURKE
—HBIBRRZERNFHBENESHE
Mzt 4R - BRAZS 2R TAMNR
BETSER (EERR I ERE
/ﬁ) D/\J—HZN\ //\L@é@ﬂﬁfﬂ ﬁ
B anfa] [ (K 2 5 A O BCR 5 T
3o ﬁq@@%ﬁ@jﬁb%m%iﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
H* IARER e B WU B i i & 15
i

45 m B
() E¥ER

R A S B B AR T
AEBENINEEERARE
AR5 RIR#ER A R
ERMEEHUARKETENRS
F o Fitt - BEEmHINERR
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued EWMTHE— &
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies b) HEEBEENEZERBE —
— Continued &

Market risk — Continued

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group do not expose any fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its variable rate bank balances. The Group
considered that the effect of the cash flow interest rate
is minimal and no sensitivity analysis to interest rate risk
is presented.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, bank balances and
other receivables and deposits. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

(i) Trade receivables

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 64%
(2019: 62%) and 100% (2019: 99%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

The Group has concentration of credit risk by
geographical location as the entire balance of its trade
receivable as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were in
the PRC.
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Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
— Continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — Continued

(i)

(i)

(i)

Trade receivables — Continued

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
receivables individually or based on provision matrix.
Except for items that are subject to individual
evaluation, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables are grouped
under a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due exposure.
Net reversal of impairment loss of approximately
RMB6,000 (2019: Impairment loss of approximately
RMB363,000) are recognised during the year. Details of
the quantitative disclosures are set out below in this
note.

Bank balances

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are
international banks and state-owned banks with good
reputation.

Other receivables and deposits

The credit risk on other receivables and deposits are
also limited because of the natures of these balances,
credit quality of the counterparties and the historical
settlement record.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-T-TF+-A=+HLFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
— Continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — Continued

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL

34. ¢RTH — &

(b) MBEREENEZEREE —

=B R E G — &

TR AEENEHEEEERR
(REITRMERBENM)

assessment:
Internal Gross
credit 12-month or carrying
2020 —ECEE Notes rating lifetime ECL amount
1288 R4 H
B ABEETR BEHEEER IREAZE
RMB’000
ARETR
Financial assets at amortised costs & 85 B A< 51| BR #Y
CHEE
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 20 N/A 12-month ECL 10,147
~EA 1284
BHGEEEE
Trade receivables FEWB HER 18 (notei) Lifetime ECL 5,509
(&) wy
BEHEEEE
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BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

— Continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — Continued

34. €RTH — &

(b) MBEREENEZEREE —

&

EEmEBRRBEF G — &

Internal Gross

credit 12-month or carrying

2019 “E-NF Notes rating lifetime ECL amount
12 A& s

k=3 NS EESL  EHEEHE REAH

RMB’000

ARETT

Financial assets at amortised costs 1% # 85 % 451 iR H9
CHEE

Bank balances and cash RITREBLA S 20 N/A 12-month ECL 10,979
i 12184
HEEEEER

Trade receivables W E ZERF 18 (note i) Lifetime ECL 12,476
(PR aED) "y
HHEEESE

Other receivables and deposits HipEUBRT MR e 19 (note i) 12-month ECL 23
(F=Ei) 1218 A
BHEEEBR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
— Continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — Continued

Notes:

(i) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for
items that are subject to individual evaluation, which are assessed for
impairment individually, the Group determines the ECL on these items
by past due status, historical loss rates and adjust for forward-looking
information.

(ii) For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses
past due information to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, these balances are either not past due or doesn’t have fixed
repayment.

(iii) The directors of the Company considers credit risks have increased
significantly and those past due more than 90 days are considered as
credit-impaired.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers because these customers have common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which
are assessed based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
— Continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — Continued

EWMTHE— &
BREREENEEREEK —
F

=B E B R E G — &

2020 2019
—EC-EE —NEF

Average Trade Average Trade

loss rate  receivables loss rate receivables

Gross carrying amount IREAE THERE BREZERR THERX ERESEXN
Current (not past due) R (K@) 0% 5,322 0% 7,376
1-90 days past due BHI1E 0K 0% - 0% 4,351
91-180 days past due BHI91 =180k 53% - 53% 20
Over 180 days past due BHIER 180K 100% 187 100% 492
5,509 12,239

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
reversed RMB6,000 (2019: provided RMB176,000)
impairment allowance for trade receivables, based on the
provision matrix.

Debtors with significant outstanding balances or credit-
impaired with gross carrying amounts of RMB187,000 as at
31 December 2020 (2019: RMB237,000) was assessed
individually.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment
allowance of RMBNIl (2019: RMB187,000) was made on
debtor with significant balances or credit-impaired debtors.
The impairment allowance is based on the customer’s
historical settlement records, current ability to pay and the
current economic environment in which the customer
operates.

AT 1R K T 1R 8 YR R IR B B0
FEsL BRSO M XHBE
B Z AR S I IR EF R BTIE
MERMELFAR - EREE T HEM
% ABL I A TR BB T BB O TE P MR K
HAEREEHL o

BHEZZ-_ZF+-_A=-+—HLF
& ARIEBEER - R E D e
I E 5 BR 5 A R 8 6,000 7T Kk B 1%
B ZE—LF A RBEARE
176,0007T) °

RIE-FF+-_A=1+—HEREL
BEAARE 187,000 (ZF—HF
AR®E237,000) WABEARARE
BEBRUEERENEBASETHE
RIFEE ©

BHE-Z-_ZF+-_A=-+—HLF
g ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%@ﬂ%)\ﬂjfﬁ
EERENBEBAGTREARBZ T
(ZZ—hF : AR 187,0007T) A
EEE - RERENREEFBAL
Hiltr BRI NUREPEE
FIESBRIEEREET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
— Continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — Continued
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that

has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified
approach.

EWMTHE— &
(b) EBIEEMREENBEEZERKE —

=B R E G — &

Ti‘«%{?ll?E*ETF?%M?%%?H&%%EE

As at 1 January 2019
Impairment losses recognised

As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Impairment losses recognised
Write-offs
Impairment loss reversed

As at 31 December 2020

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are

AR ETaEREERE

Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)

HEEHEEERE

(HBEEERE)

RMB’000

ARETIT

RZE2E—NF—H—H 343

BHERREEE 363
EA—E n$+—ﬁ =+—-8AK

—E_EF—H—H 706

EE@:&/UMEE’J_TE\ 5

i sH (508)

B EREEE (11)

R-ZE-EF+=-A=+—H 192

EWE ZEAERREES I ERH

mainly due to: A
2020 2019
“BCEF —ENF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in lifetime ECL in lifetime ECL
Credit-impaired  Credit-impaired
F31 "y
BHGERE EHEEBR
#m/(6d)  #n/0ad)
HAGERE  HRESEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Increase in the loss allowances for trade receivables TENE 5 R TUE IR B A1 - 187
Settlement in full of trade receivables which & %ﬁ(?ﬁﬁ f3¢§ EREL
were impaired in prior year BB ZERR (1) -
Written-off of trade receivables WHEENE SRR (508) -
Changes in average loss rate THEBERE 5 176
(514) 363

134  ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ZETFFR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued 34. eWMIAE— &
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (b) MBEREENEZEREE —
— Continued &
Credit risk and impairment assessment — Continued EERRRBEE — &
The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances TRIREFE M BRI ERNE
that has been recognised for other receivables. BRIBHE -
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
KEBEBREEER
(HREERE)
RMB’000
AREFT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—H—H 639
Write-offs s (639)
As at 31 December 2019 and R-ZEB-hE+=-A=+—HEK
31 December 2020 —E_EF¥+-A=+-—H -
The Group writes off a trade receivable/other receivable when MEERBETREFSAGENERENMKNE
there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe IR E R B IR TEH (B8 &%
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of ABEEBRNEETRERFHEE
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under B BRI G DA b (LAB R 8
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or EERE))  AEEEMHEERE S
when the trade receivables are over two years past due, BRRE A FEURBR X ©

whichever occurs earlier.
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HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
— Continued

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as at 31 December
2020 as its financial assets due within one year was less than
its financial liabilities due within one year. The Group had net
current liabilities of approximately RMB14,177,000 as at 31
December 2020. The liquidity of the Group depends upon the
positive cash flows expected to be generated from the
Group’s future operations and successfully obtain new
working capital in order to meet the Group’s future working
capital and financial requirements. Details of which are set out
in Note 1.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued 34. ¢R@TH - &
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (b) MBEREENEZEREE —
— Continued &
Liquidity tables MEBEZF*
Within 1 year Between Between Total
or repayable 1and2 2and5  undiscounted Carrying
on demand years years cash flow amounts
—FRg FERM
RERBE -FEmF WEERE  RERBER REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

N S ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 31 December 2020 R=Z-ZF+-A=t-H

Non-derivative financial liabilities: HTELRER:

Trade payables EREFER 7,402 - - 7,402 7,402

Other payables and accruals it R R B R 1,239 - - 1,239 1,239

Amount due to a director EN—ZESHE 10,403 - - 10,403 10,403

Amount due to major sharsholder EN—ZTERRTE 6,000 - - 6,000 6,000

Dividends payables EfIRE 4,440 - - 4,440 4,440

Loan from a major sharehalder RE—BEEREZER - - 40,000 40,000 25,921
29,484 - 40,000 69,484 55,405

At 31 December 2019 R-E-hAEtZA=t-H

Non-derivative financial iabiltes: EITESRBRE:

Trade payables e 10214 - - 10214 10,214

Other payables and accruals EERER RESER 1,240 - - 1,240 1,240

Amount due to a director Ef—-ZESHA 11,357 - - 11,357 11,357

Dividends payables ERRE 4,440 - - 4,440 4,440

Loan from a major sharsholder KE—4IZREZER 46,000 - - 46,000 44,864
73,251 - - 73,251 72,115
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued 34. €T HE— &
(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) EMITAEATEE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are CRMEERSMBEZATEEBEN

determined as follows: e

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities . BB EREGR RGP E BB
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active MEMZEEseMEERS
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted BBEE  DoR2EFmBmE
market bid prices and ask prices, respectively; and ERENEBREEELAFE:

&

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial . EmmemEEReRABGCH
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is determined B ?E?EIE) Z RN ETIIR
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models BEREMNTERIIZAIRN
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices ERESWEAABRRARMT
from observable current market transactions and dealer BRGZEBRBEUTIAERS
quotes for similar instruments. EIEETE °

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets FEERE FAEUBKRRPIZEHEKARA
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the FremEERkemABR REE AT
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values HEBRMEEAFERS  HRke—
due to their short-term maturities, except for the loan from a major FZEERR2ERBRIN HREBERATF
shareholder, for which its carrying amount and fair value and the BARRFESHFEENT

level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed below:

Carrying
amount at Fair value at
31 December 31 December  Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2020

2020 2020 categorised into
W-E-3F p-s3-ss RCECEETCAST-ENAVESNENER
tZA=t-B tZA=t-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MEEE HATE E-R E-R E=8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTR ARBFR AREFR ARBTR

Loan from a major shareholder RE-LIZREER 25,921 31,073 - - 31,073
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fra IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — Continued

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

SRITHE — /&
(c) EMTEAFEHNE — &

— Continued
Carrying
amount at Fair valug at
31 December 31 December Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2019
2019 2019 categorised into

WoE-nE poE-hEe  RCE-NETCAZT-BHAVENENEA
+-A=+-B +ZA=t-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HEAE AVE R £ E=
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR ARETT AREFT MRS
Loan from a major shareholder RE—4EIEREZER 44,864 44,144 - - 44144

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

The loan from a major shareholder is an interest-free loan of
RMB40,000,000 (2019: RMB46,000,000) (Note 26). The loan will
be repayable in full on 30 April 2023 (2019: 30 April 2020). The fair
value of the loan is estimated as being the present values of future
cash flows, discounted at prevailing market interest rates for an
equivalent loan of 11% (2019: 13%).

B=RMAFEFEEANGEERMR
BWARE

RE—BEXEREZERBEEERAR
#40,000,000L( =T — L F: ARE
46,000,000 70) (MI5E26) - ZERBHR —-Z
C=FENA=FR(ZE-AEF: T -F
FHA=+H)BHEE - ERQTFEMGET
RIEEEES ZEEﬁmiﬂUTﬁ%(*x
fjﬁ- 3%) BEIEMARIB S RERE -
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fra IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

35. ARTFMMBARREK

COMPANY
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AR®T T AREEF T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRIMIEE (@) 2,861 2,332
2,861 2,332
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BRHIE - 'ER
receivables Hh UK AR SR = 169
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS 10,052 10,028
10,052 10,197
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HEMENEREREETER 615 641
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTT B A A RIR 5,312 925
Amount due to a director B —REERIE 10,403 11,357
Amount due to a major shareholder — JE{~—& T EE R 6,000 -
Loan from a major shareholder KE—BTERE Zf SEAN - 44,864
Dividends payable FETAR B 4,440 4,440
26,770 62,227
Net current liabilities RBAEEFHE (16,718) (62,030)
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Loan from a major shareholder KE—BEBREZER (25,921) -
Net liabilities FEE (39,778) (49,698)
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital R& AR 50,000 50,000
Reserves (] (b) (89,778) (99,698)
Capital deficiency EARE 4 (39,778) (49,698)

ARBNPFBERRKRDBEETER _-F
TF=ZA-THAMERRETIE . I
HTIEERKRESE -

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2021
and are signed on its behalf by:

He Keng Wu Shanhong
A £ RHBAL

Director Director
EE S
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fra IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 35. KRB BERRK — &
COMPANY — Continued

Notes: s -
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (@) R B A RRIRE
2020 2019
—EoEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETIRE R 6,041 5,612
Less: Accumulated impairment o BEHEE (3,180) (3,180)
2,861 2,332
(o) Reserves (b) &
Statutory
Capital Other surplus Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ERfGHE HinfE ZERHLAES RiER @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NF—A—8 40,449 258,995 23,701 (417,821) (94,676)
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FREE R 2 HEEREE
for the year - - - (5,022) (5,022)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-RF+-A=+—
1 January 2020 k—Z-_ZTF—A—H 40,449 258,995 23,701 (422,843) (99,698)
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FREER2ERHBLEE
for the year - - - (7,293) (7,293)
Arising from loan from EXEBRA—LTIEREZER
a major shareholder - 17,213 - - 17,213
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-ZF+-A=+—H 40,449 276,208 23,701 (430,136) (89,778)
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Notes to the Con\solidated Financial Statements
T E B IS IR MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

36. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

36. TEMBAF

n=

TRFR_TE-NF+ZRA=1+—

H ARAEZWMERAFENT

Place of
incorporation/
registration Date of Attributable equity
Class of and operation/  incorporation/ Paid up/ interest held
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment establishment issued share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL/
HRgE/ B8R/
WEARER Fris Rt SRl Rt HREY,/ R A BRITRA RAFELRE TEER
2020 2019
SESRE CINF
Shenzhen Shi WanHao Wu Contributed capital ~ PRC 25 December 2012 RMB3, 180,000 100% 100%  Trading the electronic component
Lian Technology Limited* EHRA i “Z--E+-f-+RB ARES 180,000 and original equipment
AT ERMBRRER AR manufacturing electronic
Subassembly
BEETHRRLRERE
i i3
Hangzhou Jingin Trading Contributed capital ~ PRC* 5May 2017 RMB2,626,000 100% 100%  Trading the industrial electronic
Co. Ltd* Bl i “E-t£RARA AR2,606,0007 inteligent control equipment and
e ESERAR" electronic automation digtal
control system
BETXEFREENIRER
ETEDRTHHES
Hangzhou Qinyu Electronic Contriouted capital ~ PRC* 7May 2017 RMB235,000 100% 100% Trading the industrial electronic
Technology Co. Ltd.* (s i “E-tERAtA AR 2350007 inteligent control equipment and
M EETREARAR) electronic automation digtal
control system
BETXEFREANIRER
ETERRTHHES
# Up to the reporting date, the Company only paid RMB2,861,000 for the ‘ HEEREAH AR EHEMBREAEARARE
registered share capital. 2,861,000 7T °
* These entities are established in the form of limited liability company. * ZEEBABREMRAR -

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ZETFFR
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Summary of Financial Information

i

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-TFT-A=tHLFE

RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=T-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ut S 322 “2-nE —Z)N\F “EtE It S N:3
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBFL ARBTT AREFTL ARBTL
Revenue Wi 35,858 66,558 61,706 44,529 14,337
Cost of sales HERK (35,377) (64,429) (57,716) (43,905) (12,648)
Gross profit ES 481 2,129 3,990 624 1,689
Other income EHMA 2 200 7 14 5
Impairment losses under expected BOEEEREAETHE
credit loss model, net of reversal B NREE 6 (363) - - -
Seling and distribution expenses HERDHER (119) (%6) (32) - -
Other gain and losses LGyl (129) - - (556) (445)
Administrative expenses THER (4,511) (6,370) (4,350) (6,217) (6,218)
Finance costs RERK (4,270) (3,329 (3,077) (1,948) -
Gain on disposal of investment LERAMEREN
properties and prepaid REMTME
lease payments - - - - 2,343
Gain/(loss) on disposal/deregistration HE/HEELHBAR
of subsidiaries e/ (B8) = - 2,286 (34) -
Loss before taxation BRI AIEE (8,514) (6,823) (1,106) (7,117) (2,626)
Income tax credit/[expense) FrEmEs,/ (A) 18 (21) 27 (58) 2
Loss for the year ERER (8,496) (6,844) (1,183) (7,175) (2,624)
Attrbutable to: s
Owners of the Company RRAEBA (8,496) (6,844) (1,139) (7,175) (2,624)
Non-controlling interests R ER - - - - -
Loss for the year FRER (8,496) (6,844) (1,133) (7,175) (2,624)
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Summary of Financial Information
B E e

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BBENRER

At 31 December

R+=A=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEE TN TN\ ZE—+F ZZ—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR

Total assets BELE 15,603 23,596 26,161 28,968 15,388
Total liabilities BEEE (55,570) (72,280) (68,001) (69,623) (66,466)
(39,967) (48,684) (41,840) (40,655) (51,078)

Equity attributable to owners KRAEBA
of the Company [EL R (39,967) (48,684) (41,840) (40,655) (51,078)
Non-controlling interests SRR - - - _ _
(39,967) (48,684) (41,840) (40,655) (51,078)
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